N.H. Bureau of Securities Regulation

Response to the August 31, 2010 Proposed Report of the
Joint Legislative Committee to Review the State’s Regulatory Oversight
Over Financial Resources Mortgage, Inc.

October 8, 2010



INTRODUCTION

The Bureau of Securities Regulation ("the Bureau" or "BSR") respectfully submits this report as
a response to the Proposed Report of the Joint Legislative Commiitee to Review the State’s
Regulatory QOversight over Financial Resources Mortgage, Inc. submitted on August 31, 2010.
The BSR Report provides a critical analysis of the issues addressed in Section VII of the
Proposed Report and focuses on the facts and legal analysis related to the oversight of the Bureau
of Securities Regulation.

L THE BUREAU'S OBJECTION TO SPECIFIC POINTS IN SECTION VII
OF THE PROPOSED REPORT

In reviewing Section VII of the Proposed Report, the BSR Report addresses with specificity
various important misunderstandings, inaccuracies, and errors of fact and law. The BSR Report
also notes various opinions in the Proposed Report that do not contribute to the intent of the
report to “provide an overview of the statutory authority of the three agencies that had contact
with or regulatory oversight over FRM” and “make...recommendations regarding legislative
action to better protect the citizens of New Hampshire from this type of behavior in the future.”

The BSR notes with particular concern the conclusion in the proposed report that the bureau took
an unduly restrictive view of its authority based on information in its possession. The report also
concludes that a more aggressive approach in investigating FRM should have been taken by the
Bureau. Few facts which support these conclusions are offered. It seems to ignore the actual
evidence that the BSR had available in pursuing its case against Financial Resources and Scott
Farah. It does not distinguish between allegations of fraudulent activity, “notice of” fraudulent
activity, or actual evidence of fraudulent activity. An in-depth discussion of the evidence that the
BSR had to act on is critical to any discussion of the BSR’s role in this matter. As a result, the
findings of the Proposed Report often appear to reach conclusions inadequately supported by
concrete facts.

Moreover, the Proposed Report appears to rely extensively on the factual and legal analysis of
the BSR’s role provided by another state agency that has offered a view quite different from the
view of the BSR. Given the issues that have been raised both at hearing and in public regarding
potential conflicts of interest, it would seem more appropriate to have conducted an independent
review of the facts and law. In addition, with all due respect to other regulatory agencies, the
expertise for determining the proper jurisdiction of the BSR lies within the BSR itself and not
with agencies that have little or no expertise in the complexities of securities law. In this regard,
the report does not adequately acknowledge the analysis and conclusions of N.H. Bureau of
Securities Director Joseph Long. He examined the work of Bureau staff in handling the FRM
matter; the documents which are alleged to have been securities; New Hampshire law; and the
New Hampshire securities statutes. His conclusion, under the facts known to the Bureau at the
time is that the documents in question were not, and are not, securities.




Finding 1:  BSR failed to appropriately pursue FRM after receiving notice of fraudulent
and illegal activities.

Bureau’s Response to Finding #1

The Bureau takes issue with several statements in the discussion of Finding 1. The finding makes
a broad and unsupported allegation. In the first sentence the Report asserts, “The Bureau’s most
obvious regulatory failure was its failure to appropriately pursue the company after receiving
notices 1n 2005 and 2006 that FRM had advertised a fraudulent investment opportunity.” As
support, the paragraph cites the Transcript of the May 21, 2010 Hearing at p. 27, which records
the testimony of Associate Attorney General Richard Head. Accepting the testimony of Mr.
Head at face value, nowhere in Mr, Head’s testimony does it suggest that the Bureau had become
aware of advertising related to FRM.

What did in fact happen was that the Bureau received a phone call in late 2005 from Ron Stone,
who had initiated a lawsuit against FRM. Mr, Stone said he did not wish to file a complaint and
would handle the matter through his attorney and the Attorney General’s Office. Since no
complaint was filed and the Attorney General’s Office had been contacted by Christopher Carter,
Mr. Stone’s attorney, the Bureau reasonably believed that the matter was being handled by the
Attorney General’s office. It was only upon the release of the Attorney General’s Report in April
2010 that the Bureau discovered that the matter had allegedly been referred informally to the FBI
and no further action was taken on the matter. It is also important to note that the Bureau later
inquired with FRM’s counsel about the Stone matter and learned that the civil case brought by
Mr. Stone was settied, and subject to a confidentiality agreement. This calls into question the
specific characterization of this matter as “(t)he Bureau’s most obvious regulatory failure.”

The Bureau also acknowledges that in May 2006 it had received a request for a joint examination
from the Banking Department. However, as noted, the Bureau did not join in the examination
because the Bureau had no examination authority. In addition, any visitation to FRM required
notice of such visitation from the Bureau, which would have compromised the Banking
Department’s planned surprise examination. However, the Bureau did in fact visit the offices of
FRM shortly following the Banking Department’s examination.

The first paragraph of Finding | also asserts, “In 2006, the Bureau also received evidence that
FRM had committed new violations of its administrative order.” While the Bureau acknowledges
it became aware of additional securities issued during 2002-2003, it is important to note that the
Consent Order that made the Bureau’s original cease and desist order binding was not actually
issued until January 2007. Therefore, the Bureau’s original cease and desist order of 2001 was
still the subject of an adjudication and no final action had been taken.

In the same paragraph, the Report asserts, “(The Bureau) knew at this point that FRM was in
financial trouble.” On the contrary, the audited financial statements submitted to the Bureau in
2006 indicated that FRM had substantial assets to draw from in providing relief to investors.
Inherent in this statement from Finding 1 is the belief that the Bureau should have looked beyond
the financial statements and conducted 11s own audit of FRM’s finances. The Bureau receives




thousands of financial statements annually and does not inquire into the underlying accounts and
transactions unless proof is presented that the financial statements are untrustworthy. In this case,
the Bureau had no reason to believe that the trustworthiness of the financial statements was in
question since they were produced and submitted by FRM’s state-licensed CPA and attorney.
The report presents no evidence that the Bureau had reason to believe the financial statements
were questionable.

Finally, the first paragraph of Finding 1 ends with a troubling assertion “Rather than pursue the
new matters aggressively, the Bureau concentrated its efforts on wrapping up its 2001 case in a
belated 2007 Consent Agreement.” The Bureau has elsewhere addressed the reason why this
matter was not concluded until January 2007. The Bureau strongly objects to the characterization
of its efforts as lacking in aggressiveness. On the contrary, the Bureau acted to insure that all the
investors who were the victims of unlicensed sales of unregistered securities received full
restitution of their moneys. From the standpoint of January 2007, this was a commendable result
in which the Bureau did exactly what it was charged with doing — protecting investors in
securtties.

In the second paragraph of Finding 1, the report states, “The Bureau allowed more than eighteen
(18) months to pass from the time it received the initial complaint from Attorney Latici to the
time it issued an administrative order against Scott Farah, Gary Coyne and FRM.” The Bureau
objects to this characterization, noting that complex cases can often take substantial amounts of
time to move from complaint through investigation and to the initiation of an enforcement
action. Given the complexity of the case, and that the Bureau was contending with the exit of its
prior staff attorney and the introduction of a new one, some delay, while unfortunate, was
unavoidable, and to be expected. This paragraph also states, “Another fourteen (14) months
passed before a hearing was held on the violations giving rise to the order.” Again, this is not an
unreasonable amount of time in a complex case, particularly given the Bureau’s interest in
protecting investors by arranging full restitution. During this period, the Bureau was dealing with
FRM’s refusal to provide banking documents, reviewing extensive documents produced by
FRM, and attempting to settle the matter.

During the later part of September, 2002, the Bureau met with the Attorney General’s office to
discuss a proposed written Undertaking between Financial Resources and the Bureau. This
Undertaking included among other things assurances from Financial Resources that it would not
issue additional securities, would reduce its debt position, and repay investors. The Attorney
General’s office believed the Undertaking process was acceptable. In June, 2003 the Bureau
returned to the Attorney General’s office and advised them of Financial Resources’ non-
compliance with the undertaking and at that time requested its assistance to perform an asset
freeze. The Attorney General’s office was provided with a copy of Financial Resources financial
statement and additional supporting documents.

The second paragraph of Finding 1 closes with the statement, “No decision was ever rendered by
the Hearing Examiner and the case was administratively resolved in 2007 with funds that
seemingly appeared from out of nowhere.” (Emphasis added). The Report provides no citation or
other support for the allegation that the funds seemingly appeared out of nowhere. In fact, if the
record had been independently reviewed, it would have been clear that the financial statements




provided by the accountants and attorney for FRM demonstrated the existence of significant
assets that would allow investors to be made whole. This unsupported allegation unfairly
impugns the investigative abilities of the Bureau, which have been demonstrated over and over
again in the many cases that the Bureau has taken to a successful conclusion in the last nine
years.

The third paragraph of Finding 1 in the Proposed Report begins with the statement, “To be fair,
there is certainly evidence that the Bureau attempted to address violations committed by FRM
within the perceived limits of its authority.” The Bureau questions the necessity of the phrase “to
be fair” and would hope that the whole report is being fair, not only to the Bureau but also to the
Banking Department, the Department of Justice, and, most importantly, to the victims of FRM,
Moreover, the Burean notes that, within the proper bounds of its jurisdiction, it actually did
address the securities violations committed by FRM. For example, the Bureau inspected in May
2006 additional notes issued by FRM, contacted the Attorney General’s Office regarding the
delay in a decision on the prior hearing, and sought information related to the phone call from
Ron Stone. As noted elsewhere, it did not and could not have addressed securities violations of
which it could not have been aware of violations that indeed were not securities violations.

Later in the third paragraph, the Report states, “It is unclear why the Bureau’s efforts were less
robust in 2005 and 2006 when additional reports of fraud and non-compliance were received.”
The Bureau strongly objects to the unsupported allegations that its efforts in 2005 and 2006 were
lacking in robustness. In fact, the Bureau is puzzled by the reference to “additional reports of
fraud.” The one and only arguably additional report of questionable activity was related to Mr.
Stone’s phone call. In relation to that, the Bureau proactively took steps to address potential
securities violations, including:

s Researching and investigating National Inspection and Repair, the firm in which Mr.
Stone was involved.

Obtaining documents from the state of Kansas related to National Inspection and Repair
Obtaining a copy of the judgment for Scott Farah against National Inspection and Repair
Interviewing Scott Farah and discussions with his attorney.

Encouraging Mr. Stone to file a complaint with the Bureau (which he declined to do)
Attempting to obtain and being refused a copy of the Stone settlement from FRM’s
counsel

Again, from the standpoint of 2005 and 2006 and relying on the information that was available to
the Bureau, the Bureau’s efforts were sufficiently robust to win rescission for affected investors
in the unregistered securities of FRM in January 2007. As noted, any additional report of fraud in
2005 and 2006 had been referred to the Attorney General’s Office for criminal action and the
alleged victim of the fraud never submitted a complaint to the Bureau. Not knowing the details
of Mr. Stone’s issue, the Bureau was dealing with an amorphous, non-specific complaint. To
adequately pursue a potential violation, the Bureau needs to have evidence and not vague
statements. It is important to note that evidence of new securities violations would not have
caused the Bureau to expand its investigation into areas it did not regulate. In addition, the new
violations did not indicate or suggest the existence of CL&M, Donald Dodge. the trusts,
Greatland Development Company, and private lending activities. Many of these matters were




under the jurisdiction of the Banking Department. Given this background, the Bureau acted
strongly in this case, and questions why the robustness of its efforts in this case is being
questioned.

The next sentence in the third paragraph states, “While there is agreement that constraints on the
Bureau’s ability to audit FRM existed prior to 2007, it seems clear that, as of 2006, the Bureau
had actual evidence of new violations of the New Hampshire Securities Act.”' This is another
instance among several where the report refers to examination authority before and after 2007.
The Bureau notes that HB 889 of 2007 did not take effect until July 1, 2007, nearly six months
after the Consent Order was signed with FRM. If the implication is that the perceived expanded
authority under HB 889 allowed the Bureau to conduct examinations of FRM after July 1, 2007,
we believe this is a mistaken assumption. While after July 1, 2007, the Bureau had the authority
to examine the records of an issuer-dealer “licensed or required to be licensed,” the Bureau had
no information suggesting that FRM was required to be licensed after signing the Consent Order
in January 2007. The Bureau would have at least required evidence - if not an actual finding or
order — that FRM should be licensed in order to conduct an examination. In any event, the further
sales of securities discovered in 2006 were subject to the cease and desist order contained within
the Consent Order of January 2007. The amendments to the law enacted in 2007 by HB 889 had
no bearing on this situation,

The Report concludes by stating, “BSR does not appear to have lacked resources, as it
aggressively pursued enforcement actions against licensed entities. More than anything else,
BSR appeared to be constrained in pursuing FRM based upon perceived limitations of its
authority.” The Bureau has never asserted that it was lacking in resources and concurs that it
aggressively pursued enforcement actions. Relative to the Report’s assessment of the Bureau's
actions as lacking in robustness, a brief review of the record will demonstrate that the Bureau has
continuously and aggressively pursued wrongdoers on behalf of the state’s investors and is
responsible for securing over $55 million in fines, penalties, and restitution. Why on this one
case the Bureau would have decided not to be aggressive is never fully explained in the report.
The statement that “the BSR appeared to be constrained based upon perceived limitations” is an
unfair assessment that presents no evidence of error on the part of the Bureau. The Bureau notes
that inherent in the delegation of authority from the legislature to an administrative agency are
built-in constraints and jurisdictional limitations, as well as prosecutorial discretion. Therefore,
the last statement in this paragraph merely states the obvious without indicating why the Bureau
was wrong in the way it perceived its legislatively-granted authority. The issue of authority was
addressed at length by Director Long in writing and in testimony before the Committee.

In sum, the Report appears to be trying to replace the judgment of the Bureau with someone
else’s opinion. In its investigation of FRM, the Bureau evaluated the evidence and developed a
responsible solution. Nowhere does the author of the Report state specifically what the Bureau
should have done differently, or how it failed to carry out its duties under the statutory provisions
of RSA 421-B.

! For clarification purposes, the Bureau notes that the violations it became aware of in 2006 were not new. In 2005 the Bureau
became aware of further notes that were issued in 2002 and 2003,




Finding 2:  BSR’s arguably narrow view of its investigative and enforcement authority
prevented it from taking effective action.

Bureau’s Response to Finding #2

The Bureau takes issue with the Report's Finding 2, on p.44, for many reasons. First, the Bureau
strongly objects to the first sentence of the report which reads:

The Bureau appeared to take a very narrow view with respect to its investigation
and enforcement authority, which explains why it simply pursued securities
violations in 2001 when confronted with evidence of fraud and commingling of
funds.

This quote "finding" is objectionable for any one of a number of reasons.

The first objection is relevance. What do the activities of the Bureau in 2001, have to do with
the present investigation?

The securities involved in the 2001 administrative action of the Bureau were preferred stock and
unsecured promissory notes, which by anyone's definition, are securities. The instruments in
question, beginning sometime in 2004 or 20035 were secured promissory notes, secured by real
property morigages on residential and commercial real pmperty.2 As the Bureau's Statement of
Policy, which is being released contemporaneously with this Response demonstrates, the 2004
secured promissory notes are not securities under either New Hampshire law or under the Reeves
test which the Committee Report recommends the Legislature statutorily adopt.

The 2001 incident and the 2004 incident have nothing in common, except that they involve the
same cornpany.3 Therefore, the conduct of the Bureau in connection with the earlier violation is
not relevant to its conduct in the later alleged violation of the securities act beginning in 2004.
Most importantly, the Committee's Proposed Report ("Committee Report” or simply "Report")
makes no attempt to explain how the 2001 action is relevant. Instead, it simply, uncritically,
accepts the Attorney General's position that it is relevant in some way.

The second objection to this finding is the claim that the Bureau was "confronted with evidence
of fraud and commingling of funds." The statement as to "fraud" simply 1s not supported by the
record, and the comment about "commingling" is legally insignificant. As to the statement
concerning "fraud", the Report cites no authority for this claim except a vague reference to the
Attorney General's Report in Footnote 119, in which Mr. Spill of the Bureau disputes any claim
of fraud. There is no evidence that the 2001 incident involved fraud in the Hearing Record.

* The fact that the lenders never received their real property mortgages is irrelevant to the classification of the notes coupled

with the notes as securities. |n many securities frauds, the investors never receive the securities promised them. The key point
s what were the investors promised, not what the investors received.

> Tc be more exact, the 2001 company did not exist in 2004, but had been replaced with a new company. The two companies,

however, have a common history.




What is in the Hearing Record, is an indication that a private attorney in a civil action against
FRM claimed that FRM had committed fraud. There is a tremendous difference between a claim
of fraud by an advocate in an adversarial sefting or pleading and proof fraud. This claim again
represents another unwarranted reliance by the Committee on the Attorney General's Report as
establishing "facts”, when either none exists, or, if it exists, has not been made a part of the
Hearing Record.

As to the claim that "commingling of funds” is somehow legally significant, the Report makes no
attempt to explain why this somehow should have triggered action by the Bureau. Commingling,
in and of itself, has no relevance to securities classification. For example, a group of families
join together to buy a vacation home which all families will share in the use of. Such purchase,
alone, does not involve the purchase of a security. The same is true of a group of investors who
buy a piece of undeveloped land as tenants-in-common or joint tenants, with no intent to develop
the land. Again, there is no security, but a pooling of investor funds to purchase the land.

As indicated above, the 2001 incident involved unsecured promissory notes, more properly
labeled as debentures, and preferred stock of FMR. Of course, in both incidents, the Bureau
would expect to find a commingling of investor funds. When an investor buys a bond or
debenture from Ford Motor Company, what happens?

In the case of the bond or debenture, the money becomes the property of Ford Motors and
commingled with other assets of Ford, to be used by Ford as it sees fit. The same is true of the
purchase of a certificate of deposit or savings account in a bank. The investor or depositor
becomes a creditor of Ford or the Bank, but has no ownership interest in either’s’ assets. If the
debt is a bond, the creditor's debt interest is secured by a mortgage on some asset of Ford or the
bank.

In the case of a preferred stock, the investor is buying an equity interest in Ford or the bank. The
money paid for the interest becomes part of the general assets of Ford or the Bank. Again, the
investor has no claim on any particular asset of Ford or the bank.

The Report may have attached some significance to commingling in the case of the 2004
incident as one branch of the test for investment contracts developed by the Supreme Court in
SEC v. W.J. Howey Co., 328 U.S. 293, 66S.C.T. 1100(1946)* does consider commingling or
"pooling of investor funds" significant to the determination whether a transaction might
constitute an investment contract. However, "investment contracts”" are an entirely different
form of security from either preferred stock or debentures or unsecured promissory notes. While
the Attorney General's Report posed some hypotheticals concerning whether the transactions
involved in the 2004 incident could have been investment contracts, no evidence was offered that
the hypothetical’s acrually occurred.  Further, the Committee's Report does not address this
issue.

* This test indicates that an investment contract involves: (1) The investment of money; {2} In a comman
enterprise; (3) With expectation of a profit; (4) With the profit coming solely through the efforts of the promoter
or some third party. See 12 ioseph C. Long Blue Sky Law & 2:44 - 2:75 {2010}. Element two has been held by
certain courts to require the commingling of investor funds. Seeid. § 2:54.




In summary, the "commingling” issue represents another example of the Proposed Report
accepting the Attorney General's Report and statements therein as "evidence,” when in fact the
statements are not evidence and are merely unsupported claims.

The Bureau takes exception to the second sentence of the finding which claims that the Bureau
failed to use its investigative power "when presented with allegations and evidence of fraud prior
to 2007." The Bureau notes that there is no citation to any part of the record before the
Committee made to support this finding. The reason is simple. There are no such allegations or
evidence in the record which supports this finding. The Bureau received no communication from
the general public, the Department of Banking, or the Attorney General's Office, suggesting any
such fraudulent or unregistered securities activity by FRM afier 2003. No one, other than by
drafting Finding 2, has suggested otherwise, or, more importantly, offered any proof to support
such claim.

The Bureau can only guess that the unidentified reference is to the Stone case and the
communications which arose there from. The Bureau is more than ready to provide evidence
that the transaction in Stone involved transactions which took place in 2003 and before and
involved unsecured promissory notes, similar or identical to those which were the subject of the
2001 Cease and Desist Action by the Bureau.”

Further, contrary to the suggestion of Finding 2, the Bureau requested that FRM provide a list of
these transactions, which had not previously been disclosed. Counsel for FRM complied. The
Bureau had no reason to doubt, that counsel, as an officer of the court, disclosed all such
promissory notes.® These notes were then made a part of the 2001 Action against FRM, and

repayment was made before the Consent Order closed the action in 2007. Thus, contrary to the
assertion of Finding 2, the Bureau did act on the Stone complaint.” The Stone letter and suit in
no way provided the Bureau with knowledge or information about the subsequent 2004
violations involving the secured real estate notes.

The Bureau also objects to the last portion of the first paragraph of Finding 2, in its suggestion
that the 2007 amendment to Section 421-B:9(1), adding the authority of the Bureau to audit
broker-dealers "required to be licensed under this Chapter...." substantially alters the enforcement
power of the Bureau, and that, as a result, the Bureau would have had the necessary authority to
investigate FRM. lts objection is three fold.

First, the key to the application of this section aguin is knowledge. The Bureau has to have some
knowledge or information that FRM is conducting business as an unlicensed broker-dealer

® See footnote 101 of the Report on p. 40.

® The documents attached as Appendix 3 show how the varlous zttorneys were trying to deflect the FRM matter from the
Bureau to the banking department.

" The settlement regotiations in the Stone case, attached as Appendix 4 reflect the attempts of the FRM firm to prevent the
Bureau from receiving information concerning the Stone matter,




before it can act. In the case of licensed broker-dealers, the Bureau is aware of the existence of
these broker-dealers, because of the licensing process. However, the Bureau has no similar
internal source for discovering the existence of unlicensed broker-dealers. Therefore without
such information or knowledge coming from sources outside the Bureau, the Bureau cannot
exercise the audit powers granted by the 2007 amendment.

The Bureau has consistently maintained thar it received no such oulside information or
complaint® about FRM selling the secured promissory notes during the period of 2004 until FRM
Jailed in 2009 except for the Stone complaint. 7 As indicated above, no evidence to the contrary
has been produced. Only the Committee's proposed Report wrongfully assumes such

knowledge.

Second, the audit power of Section 421-B:%(1) is based upon the requirement that the broker-
dealer is required to be licensed, but is not. However, the requirement to be licensed is
dependent upon the person or entity being a statutory broker-dealer under Section 421-B:2(111).
This definition only applies to persons "effecting transactions in securities...." The Bureau, as
the exclusive administrative agency charged with defining the definition of "securities."® 7he
Bureau has consistently taken the position that the FRM secured promissory notes were not
securifies,

As the Statement of Policy to be issued in the near future will outline in detail, this was the law
from, at least the early 1950's through 2009, remains the law, and will remain the law in the
future, unless overruied by the Courts or changed by the Legistature.”

The Bureau has determined the FRM secured promissory notes were not, and are not, securities.
FRM would not have had to be licensed as a broker-dealer in New Hampshire. Therefore, the
Bureau could not have exercised its investigatory authority granted under Section 421-B:9(I).

Third the Proposed Report fails to note that language in the 2007 amendment to Section 421
B:9(I) is a paper tiger. The language of the amendment was borrowed from the Uniform
Securities Act (2002), but the amendment did not include the enforcement provisions found in

8 The Attorney General has admitted that it received a number of complaints about FRM after 2004, but these complaints were
forwarded, not to the Bureau, but to the Banking Department. The Committee should ask itse!f; unlicensed broker-dealer, then
why were the complaints sent to the Banking Department rather than the Bureau?

* As pointed out elsewhere in this response, the Stone complaint involved wnsecured promissory notes purchased around 2003,
Therefare, Stone has nothing to do with the sales of the secured promissory notes in the period from 2004 through November
2009,

10 The Committee Report discusses this issue at great length and appears to accept the Attorney General's analysis on the
issue. But, while the Attorney General's opinion might be relevant in drafting a change to the Securities Act, it is totally
irrelevant in determining what the definition of securities covered at the time of the FRM case. Such decision at the
administrative lavel was solely within the jurisdiction of the Bureau. The Attorney General had no authority to second guess the

Bureau on this issue.

" This position removed any obstacle for the Consumer Affairs Division to take action against FRM under the Consumer
Protection Act. Yet the Attorney General did not act.




the Uniform Act. When Section 421-B:9(1) is applied to a licensed broker-dealer and the broker-
dealer does not submit to the audit, such failure to cooperate is grounds for immediate summary
suspension of the entity's license. However, when applied to an unlicensed broker-dealer, the
Bureau has no license to revoke, if the target refuses to submit to the audit. The only remedy
available to the Bureau is to use the normal enforcement remedies or request the Attorney
General or the County Attorney to file misdemeanor charges under Section 421-B:(9)(1I){f).

Finally, the Bureau objects to the second paragraph of Finding 2. It, again, assumes without
cilation of supporting evidence, that the Bureau had knowledge of complaints of wrongdoing in
the period afier 2004. The Bureau did not. Failure to join with the Banking Department is not
as the Attorney General's office claims the defining or pivotal moment in the FRM case.

As the Bureau has noted on many occasions, its power to investigate unlicensed broker-dealers
before 2007 was limited. As outlined above, that power was not substantially changed by the
2007 amendment to Section 421-B:%(I). In ecither case, in order to exercise its investigative
power, the Bureau has (o have some information that violations of the securities act have, or are
about, to take place.

Finding 3:  BSR’s arguably narrow view of which of FRM’s investment and lending
vehicle constitute a. security under NH law appeared to make it easier for FRM to
perpetrate its illegal behavior.

Bureau’s Response to Finding #3

This finding is pure conjecture. The Bureau properly applied and interpreted the N.H. Securities
Act based on the financial instruments known at the time of its review.

Reflection on the changes to the securities act in 2007 1s in order. The report makes the assertion
that these changes conferred on the Bureau authority to investigate entities which should be
licensed under the act. While this is true in some sense, the report fails to address the need for
specific facts upon which to justify investigation and the need for jurisdiction over the entity.
Time and again reference is made to investigating not based upon current activity of the entity
and current knowledge available to regulators but rather upon any prior improper activity by an
entity, without consideration as to when the activity occurred or the nature of the specific
activity. This may in fact be what some have referred to as “regulatory curiosity.” In any case
the term regulatory curiosity is nonexistent as a standard of conduct in any jurisdiction. Using it
as a standard of legal conduct by regulators would render legal process and regulatory function
in the state unworkable.

Finding4:  BSR Failed to manage and supervise the work of its hearings officer.

Bureau’s Response to Finding #4
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The Bureau has some objections to Finding 4. The present Director of the Bureau agrees with
the Report and the Attorney General that the Bureau does have the power of general supervision
over its hearing officers. The present Director has changed that policy.

Former Director Connolly and Deputy Director Jeff Spill both acted in good faith and had a
reasonable basis for their conclusion'’. All would agree that it is paramount of the administrative
process to run correctly that the hearings officer’s not be subject to any influence from the
agency as to the running and outcome of an administrative hearing. Enforcement of this rule is a
major concept of New Hampshire. Therefore, both Connolly’s and Spill’s actions in refusing to
pressure the hearing officer was an error in favor of protecting a fundamental right.

Further, as footnote 120 on p. 45 of the Committee Report indicates, they sought advice of the
Attorney General on the issue and were provided none over an extended period. Therefore, they
were left to their own devices in making the decision, which should not be second guessed at this

point.

Finally, as to the actions of the hearing officer's actions in not rendering a decision, it was made
in good faith and in what was clearly the best interest of the New Hampshire investors. He
believed that he lacked authority to order rescission by the FRM over a period of time rather than
in a single payment. The repayment of their entire investment to all investors in a single
payment would bankrupt the company.

It is the opinion of the present Director that such remedy by an imposed order might well be
beyond his authority. However, as the present Director is well aware, such time payments would
be allowed in a consent order. What the hearing officer did was enter into a de facto consent
order. FRM would repay the investors over time, and the Bureau would supervise FRM to see
that the payments were made. If FRM did not live up to its obligations under the agreement, the
case would be returned to an active status, and an order of adjudication entered.

The only fault of the Bureau and the hearing officer was that they did not reduce the de facto
settlement order to writing. Under present policy of the Bureau, a formal settlement order
similar to that found in Commonwealth of Virginia ex rel. State Corp. Comm'n v. Trust Alliance,

12 The draft report fails to provide facts or analysis indicating what substantive error was made by the hearings officer.
Specifically RSA 421-B: 26-a XIV aliows the hearing officer to regulate and contro! the course of the hearing, determine
credibility or weight of evidence in making findings of fact and conclusions of law, render oral and written decisions, reports or
recommendations as authorized by statute or rule, and take any action in a proceeding necessary to conduct and complete the
case, consistent with applicable statutes, rules and precedents.

" At na point in either the working report or the Attorney General's report is considaration given to RSA 421-B: 26-a XXV. This
statute contains a specific prohibition as to communication by any party with either the presiding officer or the secretary of
state concerning the merits of the case except upon notice to ail parties. It further prohibits any party to cause another person
to make such communications. These requirements and prohibitions attach once a heasring notice has been issued
commencing an adjudicatory proceeding.

Given this statute, communicating with the hearings officer for the purpose of appropriate control and exercising supervision in
the manner implied by the working report coufd have been interpreted by some parties as an effort to influence the outcome
of the adjudication whether the communication was made in writing or not. The result would have simply been more

procedural infighting, not more clarity.

11




et al., 2006 WL 3519471 (Va. Corp. Comm. Nov. 29, 2006), attached as Attachment 5, will be
entered which will state the undertakings of the violator. The Bureau will retain jurisdiction to
see that the undertakings are complied with. If so, a final order of dismissal will be entered. See
Commonwealth of Virginia ex rel. Staie Corp. Comm'n v. Trust Alliance, et al, 2010 WL
1920241 (Va. Corp. Comm. May 3, 2010), attached as Attachment 6. If not, then the consent
order is voided, and the case proceeds.

Mr. Spill was correct in concluding that when the Bureau issued its Final Order in the FRM case
in 2007, the Bureau lost jurisdiction in that matter. As the Virginia Order indicates, the case 1s
dismissed. As the Virginia Order also notes, the obligations of FRM under the Order continue.
However, if the Bureau receives information that the obligations are not being honored, the
Bureau must open a new investigation under Section 421-B:22(I). Again, as with all
investigations, the key is knowledge or information that the Order is being violated. The Bureau
did not receive any such knowledge or information until after the collapse of FRM in November
2009. No evidence has been introduced to the contrary.

The Bureau objects to any suggestion in the Committee Report that the Bureau did not act
diligently either in bringing the action against FRM or bringing such action to a close.

The Report contains no indication as to what is considered a reasonable time for such actions by
the SEC or other state securities agencies. In fact, many SEC actions are not filed for several
years after the agency first obtained information that there might be a violation. A substantial
period may also elapse before a final disposition of the case is made. Further, the statement in
paragraph two of Finding 4 is misleading. The FRM case was resolved in 2007 with a consent
order. In the case of a consent order, no decision of the hearing officer is required. The consent
is a substitute for such finding.

In summary, while the Bureau's and Hearing Officer's actions may not have followed the literal
documentation requirements of the Act, their actions were taken in good faith and with the intent

to further the public interest. The public interest was served in that the investors received a
complete return of their money.

1L THE BUREAU'S COMMENTS AND OBJECTIONS TO RECOMMENDATIONS
IN SECTION V11 OF THE PROPOSED REPORT

Recommendation #1

The Legislature should ciarify what constitutes a security under the New Hampshire
Securities Act.

Bureau's comments on Recommendation #1

12




There are two separate issues involved in this Recommendation. The f{irst issue is; what 1s the
existing law in New Hampshire as to whether secured promissory notes are securities. The
proposed Report on pp. 45-46 contains a discussion of the differences between the present
Director of the Bureau and the Attorney General's and Legislative Counsel’s view on this point.

The Bureau does not oppose Recommendation ! as it proposes legislative action to change the
definition of a "security” as it applies to secured promissory notes. It agrees that the present
statutory scheme is flawed, and must be replaced. Likewise, the Bureau agrees that the
transactional exemption found in Section 421-B:17(II}(d) for non-issuer sales of promissory
notes sold together with the whole mortgage on the property to a single buyer in a single sale
must be repealed. The problem is what should replace it, if anything. The Bureau does not
believe that the exemption proposed in Recommendations #2(a) and #2(b) is the appropriate
solution.

Section 421-B:28(1)(d) gives the Secretary of State clear authority to define terms, including the
definition of a "security”. This power has been delegated to the Bureau. In a Statement of
Policy which is being issued contemporaneously with this response, the Bureau has outlined its
position as to when under current law such secured promissory notes will, and will not, be
treated as securities. This Policy Statement should end any debate on this issue as neither the
Attorney General nor legislative counsel should attempt to second guess the Bureau on ifs
interpretation as authorized by the Legislature.

The second issue is whether the Legislature is willing to accept the Bureau's position, which
controls the disposition of the FRM case, or wishes to prospectively change the Bureau's position
by legislative enactment.

Recommendations #2(a) and 2(b)

The Legisiature should adopt the whole mortgage exemption found in the
Uniform Securities Act (2002) along with the Maine statutory addition.

Bureau's objection to Recommendations #2(a) and 2(b)

The Bureau disagrees with legislative counsels' proposed amendments to the Securities Act
found in Recommendations #2(a) and 2(b). The following discussion is based upon iwo
assumptions. First, it assumes that the present law has been changed 1o make clear that
promissory notes coupled with a mortgage are securities. The second assumption is that there
has been a determination that public policy requires some type of exemption from the
registration provisions for, at least some, sales of these promissory notes and mortgage. The
Bureau has some question as to the validity of both these assumptions,' Further, it is important

"The Bureau would agree that the borrower, as the issuer-seller. should be afforded some relief from the consequences of
declaring these notes to be securities. The borrower will become issuer-dealer under Section 421-Bi6(i-b).  Turther, the
promissory notes and the accompanying mertgages witl be subject to the securities registration requirements of Section 421~
B:11(I) unless exempt. Should this relief take the form of an exclusion from the definition of a security, in which case the anti-
fraud and the broker-dealer-agent licensing reguirement would not apply? Or an exemption from the registration requirements
would not apply, but the anti-fraud and issuer dealer provisions would?
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to realize the public policy interest of two separate groups are involved: (1) the borrowers and
(2) now that the interests are clearly securities, the investors.

From the Borrower's Point of View:

Looking first at the problem from the borrower's standpoint, the borrowers need protection from
fraudulent and predatory practices by the mortgage banks and mortgage dealers, as well as the
ultimate purchaser of the promissory note and mortgage. Under Section 421-B:3, unlike some
other Uniform Securities Acts, it provides general anti-fraud protection for both the seller and
the borrower of a security. However, the borrower is essentially a "consumer”. Protection here
might more readily be provided by the Consumer Protection Act, than the Securities Act,
because protection under the securities act comes at a cost to the borrower.

The borrower is the issuer of the securities (the promissory note coupled with the mortgage).
Unless the transaction is exempt, the borrower will have to register the promissory note and
would have to register as an issuer-dealer under Section 421-B:6(I-b). Further, if the borrower
employs natural persons to sell the promissory note and mortgage, these natural persons will
have to register as issuer-agents. See §§421-B:2(II) and B:6(I). However, if the borrower
employs a company, such as FRM, to sell its securities, since FRM is not a natural person, it will
have to register as a securities broker-dealer. See §§431-B:2(111) and B:6(]).

However, requiring firms like FRM to register as securities broker-dealers or individual sellers to
register as Issuer-Broker agents, raises its own problems. Under Section 421-B:21(I-a)(b)}(1), the
Bureau is given exclusive authority and jurisdiction to license Broker-dealers, Issuer-dealers, and
agents, "[n]Jothwithstanding any other provisions of law". This grant of exclusive jurisdiction
runs contrary to the claimed exclusive jurisdiction by the Banking Department over mortgage
banks and mortgage brokers. The Legislature needs to address this conflict and decide which
agency is to have exclusive jurisdiction or whether jurisdiction should be shared. If the latter,
then a clause similar to Section 421-B:(I-a)(b)}(2) needs to be inserted.

The above requirements appear extremely onerous for the normal homeowner who wants to
finance the purchase of his home or borrow money upon his equity in his house. The Bureau
believes, in the case of single family residential property, that the proper solution would be an
exclusion from the definition of a security, carefully drawn to limit sales to professional or
commercial lenders only. This exclusion should be similar to Sections 421-B:2(XX)(b)-(c). The
result is essentially that reached by the Bureau through its implied exclusion theory.

The Policy reasons for such an exclusion for single family residences, the Bureau believes, do
not exist for promissory notes and mortgages on commercial real property. Therefore, the
Bureau believes that no new exclusion or exemption should be created for these promissory
notes.  Therefore, such notes and mortgages would remain securities and would have to be
registered or exempt under some other exemption. The existing Section 421-B:17(Il)(g)

*These investors range from the sophisticated banks, insurance companies, and private lending companies and individuals (the
distinction between lender and investor is no jonger recognized) and the totally unsophisticated senior citizen or mentaily
handicapped individual.
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exemption, covering sales to institutional investors, is a likely candidate as is the private place or
limited number of offerees or purchasers’ exemptions, i.e., SEC Regulation D, Rule 506, or
Section 421-B:17(1D(h). Another alternative might be to develop a new exemption based upon
the "matching service" transactional exemption found in Section 421-B:17(1)(s).

From the Investor’s Point of View:

Securities regulation is geared primarily to the protection of investors. In this case, the people
who purchase the promissory notes coupled with the mortgages. The goal of securities
regulation is two-fold: (1) To provide the investor with the necessary information to make an
informed investment decision; and (2) to protect investors from fraudulent and ill-conceived
schemes. Normally, these goals are met by requiring the use of a registered prospectus, and
taking action after the fact, if the seller of the securities does not make full disclosure or provides
fraudulent or misieading information.

In the case of promissory notes coupled with mortgages, the registration process is not efficient
except for large commercial offerings being sold to the general public. Therefore, either of two
things must be done. The most preferable is to prohibit the sales of these notes, or interests
therein, to the general public because the general public simply does not have sufficient
knowledge or expertise to make an intelligent investment decision. The second alternative is to
be sure that the general public has sufficient information outside of the registered prospectus
format and regulatory review.

The exemption proposed by the Committee Report does neither. It simply uses the de minimis
approach. Allow a limited number of sales because the injury to the public is not sufficiently
great to warrant the regulatory effort required. Such an approach is simply not acceptable to the
Bureau and should not be acceptable public policy for the State of New Hampshire.

As the FRM and similar cases indicate, these promissory notes coupled with mortgages are
increasingly becoming a major national problem. Many of the commercial lending deals are
simply too risky for the standard financial institutions. If you cannot sell to the big boys because
the deal has too strong an odor, sell it to the general public which does not have the knowledge
or experience to recognize the deal is rotten.

Private equity financing is becoming a major issue with what has been referred to as "people to
people” lending. This involves firms like FRM signing up both residential or commercial
borrowers who need money, but cannot secure it through the normal lending channels, for
various reasons.” Then the firm matches the borrower with one or more private investors to fund
the loan. In such cases, unsophisticated members of the general public become the lenders of
last resort. These investors do not rely upon their own due diligence to determine whether the
project is a "good deal”. They rely upon firms like FRM to provide those "good deals” to them.
No wonder that many of these deals turn out to be fraudulent with massive losses to the small
unsophisticated members of the general public, often who are taken for their life savings.

*Usually poor credil ar riskiness of the project for which funding is sought.
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The Bureau has a number of specific objections to the exemption offered by the Committee.
First, the exemption is far too broad. It should be limited to residential transactions only.
Further, it should not be available for use in the case of commercial loans. Second, it should be
limited only to promissory notes, and not to bonds and debentures. Debentures are unsecured
debt instruments, and, therefore, their inclusion is inappropriate. Second, the inclusion of bonds
might open the exemption to the various types of interests which almost caused the collapse of
Wall Street, when sub-par loans were collateralized.

Similarly, the present New Hampshire and the 1956 Uniform Act is limited to a "whole
mortgage". The proposed exemption simply says mortgage. Can the mortgage be fractionalized,
be a second or third mortgage?

Further, there are no limitations as to whom the notes can be sold. Any member of the general
public is fair game. Likewise, there is no limitation as to how small denominations the units may
be sold in. Requiring large units to be purchased, limits disposition to small investors because
they do not have the capital to invest. Finally, there is no limitation as to whether the exemption
can be used in primary only or primary and secondary sale. The Bureau believes that this type of
exemption has some merit when limited to primary transactions because it gives the small
residential borrower access to the market. On the other hand, the Bureau believes that this type
of exemption does not serve the goals of investor protection when it allows secondary
transactions.

Finally, the basic exemption presented is nothing more than a watered down private placement
exemption. Why is there a need for a specialized private placement exemption for notes of this

type?

As to the Maine addition contained in Recommendation #2(b), at first glance it seems like a good
idea. The problem is enforcement. As it stands now, enforcement will come only after the fact.
Unfortunately, this is after the losses have all ready been suffered. Further, who is going to make
the determination that the standard has been met? Appraisers for the issuer? What check is there
on the accuracy of such evaluation? The Bureau staff does not include an appraiser who has the
knowledge or experience to verify the accuracy of the appraisals. Nor are the appraisals
reviewable before the offers are made. At a minimum, a pre-filing before offering requirement
should be added. If the appraisals do not pass a very minimum smell test, the Bureau should be
given a minimum of 15 to 30 days to withdraw the exemption and prevent the offering from

going forward.

At present, the Bureau has no magic bullet solution as to what should be adopted in place of the
exemption contained in Recommendations #2(a) and (b). As was announced this week, the
Bureau plans to conduct an investigatory hearing to gather information to formulate such an
alternative recommendation. The Bureau believes that New Hampshire has a chance to be
proactive in this area and develop a proper regulatory program which could serve as a model for
the rest of the country. But that model is not available presently.
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Recommendation #3

The Legislature should adopt the Reves test to determine what promissory
notes should be excluded from coverage under the Securities Act,

Bureau's objection to Recommendation #3

The Bureau does not agree with legislative counsels' proposed amendments to the Securities Act
found in Recommendation #3. As discussed on pages 48-51 of the Proposed Report, the Reves
"family resemblance test" is a judicially-created test to exclude certain promissory notes from
coverage under the federal Securities Acts. The test was created by the Supreme Court in Reves
v. Ernst & Young, 494 U.S. 56 (1990). Under the Reves test certain promissory notes are
automatically excluded from the definition of a security. The test then provides a four-step test
to exclude additional promissory notes which have a "family resemblance test” to the already
excluded notes.

The Bureau's objections to recommendation #3 are numerous. The first and most important
objection is that it will not make the secured promissory notes in the FRM case securities. The
second category of excluded promissory notes under Reves involves "notes secured by a home
mortgage". Clearly the FRM {transactions involving home mortgages would remain non-
securities.

Treatment of the FRM notes secured by mortgages on commercial property is admittedly not as
clear. The last Reves category excludes notes evidencing loans by commercial banks for current
operations. If read literally the reference to "commercial banks" and "current operations" in this
exclusion might cause the FRM f{ransactions involving promissory notes secured by mortgages
on commercial real estate not to be covered by the exclusion. In which case, these notes would
remain securities under the general presumption that notes are securities.

However, the two limitations in the exclusion have not been literally applied. Instead this
exemption has been treated as applying to loans and loan participations made by a commercial or
professional lender, such as an insurance company, which is secured by a mortgage on
commercial real estate. So interpreted, the FRM commercial loan transactions would continue to
be excluded from the definition of a security. If the Bureau is correct, the legislative adoption of
the Reves test would not cure the FRM problem.

The Bureau's second objection to the Reves test is that it is a federally-created test. Legislative
counsel is incorrect in suggesting that Reves has been widely-accepted by the states for use under
the state securities acts. The Bureau's review of the court decisions reflects that siafe courts, as
opposed to federal courts attempting to predict what a state might do, have adopted the Reves test
in only approximately fifteen states. Since Reves was adopted twenty-years ago, acceptance of
the test by only fifteen states is hardly a ground-swell of acceptance. The Bureau's research
indicates that no state has adopted the Reves test by legislative amendment.

The Bureau's third objection is that the Reves test is a judicially-created test. As such, the courts
do not have the flexibility of the legislature to fashion an appropriate remedy. The courts cannot
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create exemptions to the registration requirements. Instead, as in the Reves case, they have to
create implied exclusions from the statutory definition of a security.'* Contrary to the position of
the Attorney General's expert witness, the Burcau disagrees that the introductory phase in the
statute "unless the context otherwise requires..” gives the courts or the securities agencies
license to consider the factual surroundings of the transaction to determine whether something 1s
a security. Such license will create chaos and mean that the same instrument when sold to one
person is a security, while not a security when soid to a second.

In conclusion, while the Bureau agrees that some change in the Securities Act must be made to

deal with the FRM problem. However, it does not believe that the legislative adoption of the
Reves test is the appropriate solution.

Respectfully submitted,

Joseph Long, Director
N.H. Bureau of Securities Regulation

“The Bureau finds it ironic that house legislative counsel apparently strongly objects to the implied exclusion urged by
Director Long. but champions the adaption of the Reves test based upon the same type of implied exclusion. Both the Reves lest
ané Director Long’s exciusion are. at least parily based, upon the introductory words to the definition "Unless the context
otherwise requires...."
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MEMORANDUM

To: DSG

From: DJI\;DXN\,

Date: May 13, 2004

Re: Securities Issue - Financial Resources - F040-0001

Attached is a form of draft letter from Scott Farah, the principal of Financial
Resources of Meredith, New Hampshire, a client of ours that is subject t0 a ceasz and
desist order issued by the Bureau last year [the Burean’s presiding officer has yet to issue
his opinion = guess that works for the Bureau in c&d'ing this fellow]. In the underlying
Bureau proceeding, the client issued a series of promissory notes to third parties in order
to raise funds to invest in morigages. The notes were 1ssusd by Financial Resources; the
mortgages were granted to Financial Resources and recorded in the company’s name.
Financial Resources would then make ordinary payments under Its note - apparently,
some investors in the notes were lead to believe that they were investing directly n real

estate mortgages and not in Financial Resources.

The client is licensed as a first mortgage broker under New Hampshire banking
statutes. The client has asked whether it can essentially “table fund” 2 mortgage utilizing
a third party’s funds where the mortgage would be granted in the name of the third party.
The client’s money is made on fezs for locating the borrower and closing the loan, as I
understand. Aftached is a proposed letfter that the chient would like ic send out to certain
parties identified as potential investors in mortgages. The material legal question is
whether the use of this type of letter tc identify outside investors for mortgages raises any
1ssues as to whether a security 1s being issued by the client, whsther any other securities
license is required, or whether such activities are properly within the powers of & first
mortgage licensee. You thoughts are welcomed.

DIVl

Attachment

%W/QL_ szoag



PAGE

SMiTH OFFICZ SERVICE

FINANCIAL RESOURCES INC.

13 Northview Drive ~ 2.0, Box 1158 ~ Meredith, NH 03253
(603} 279-1133 ~ Fax (603) 278-5512

May 10, 2004

Mr. Reed
County Club Road
Gitford, NH 033249

Re: Morngagsas )

Daar Mr, Reed,

Financial Resources 35 the largest, privately held, mortgage company in the State of New
Hempshire. We have been in business for mare than 135 years end have offices in 10 states. We
process hundreds of applications per month for morigages secured by reshdantietasd commercial

real estate,

1 & aware, from my research st the County Registry of Deeds, that you already own 2
morigage. We have found that other people, who are aware of the benefits of owning a
mortgage, are often interested in lending additional funds if the terms are attractive and the

securing rcal estate property is of good quality and value,

Please give me a call if you are interegted in being put on our notification alert list and/or
if you would like some additional information,

I look forward to hearing from you and would welcome the opportunity to gzt 1ogether to
explorz posgibilities that would be good for you as well as our ¢lients,

Sinceraly,

Scott Farah, President



State of New Hampshire

Banking Department

o S, 53 Regional Drive, Suite 200
: & B Concord, New Hampshire 03301
Telephone: (603) 271-3561

FAX: (603) 271-1090 or (603) 271-0750

PETER C. HILDRETH
BANK COMMISSIONER

ROBERT A. FLEURY

DEPUTY BANK COMMISSIONER, _
October 13, 2009

Scott Farah

15 Northview Drive

PO Box 1158

Meredith, NH 03253-5640

Dear Mr. Farah,

Reference is made to the New Hampshire mortgage banker license of Financial
Resources Mortgage, Inc. and to your current advertisements
(bttps:/www.privateloanopportunities.com/?key=5200836¢ ) on the internet for investors and
mortgagees. In the advertisements you personally on behalf of your company are
soliciting persons for mortgage loans and yet you are not licensed as a mortgage loan
originator in violation of RSA 397-A and the S.A.F E. Act. You must immediately cease
all such operations, remove the website and confirm to us in writing on or before October
20, 2009 that you have done so.

Additionally, it appears that you are publicly offering securities in the form of fractional
interests in mortgages and should contact the New Hampshire Securities Bureau to see if
you need to obtain authority from them prior to making such solicitations. As you are
aware, Financial Resources Mortgage, Inc. is licensed as a mortgage banker to fund
mortgages from its own money under RSA 397-A, but the company is not chartered as a
bank, savings institution or trust company under federal law or the laws of this state.

Sincerely,
4 R N
Mary L. Ju )’“

Director, Consumer Credit . (y\}(u %5 .
[ &5 {,kau 5 L:LO\
Y [0 i

cc:  Attomey Barry Glennon {éb/
Deputy Director Vs N‘{J
Bureau of Securities Regulation i ”%
Department of State 4 L “

/
107 North Main Street, #204 (
Concord, NH 03301

TDD Access Relay NH 1-800-725-2984



DENIS J. MALONEY

214 North Main Street
P.0O. Box 1415
Concord. NH 03302-1415

Ph: (603) 228-1181
Fax: (603) 226-3334
maloney@geglaw.com

October 20, 2009

HAND DELIVERED

Mary L. Jurta

Director. Consumer Credit

New Hampshire Banking Department
53 Regional Drive, Suite 200
Concord, New Hampshire (3301

Re: Financial Resources Mortgage. Inc.

Dear Ms. Jurta,

We have been retained to represent Financial Resources Mortgage, Inc. ("FRM") with respect to
vour letter dated October 13, 2009. Please be advised that effective Friday, October 16, 2009, FRM
disabled its supplemental web site, www, privateloanopportunities.com.

FRM's suppiemental web site was developed in order to provide a listing of available for sale
commercial loan opportunities. The web site, however, also mistakenly included information with respect
to mortgage loans subject to the provisions of revised RSA 397-A, as well as fractional interests therein.

, FRM presently plans to re-activate the supplemental closed-access web site for investors; the site
will not include information with respect to loans subject to RSA 397-A, or fractional interesis in any

loans.

Finally, Scott Farah is currently completing the required RSA 397-A training classes, and is in the
process of filing for a loan originator license. Mr. Farah will not ransact New Hampshire residential
mortgage business until he is properly licensed as a mortgage ioan originator.

Please feel free 10 contact me with any questions or concerns.

Sincerely,

Do IN

Denis J. Maloney

ce: Scott D. Farah, President. Financial Resources Mortgage, Inc.
Barmry Glennon. Esq.. NH Bureau of Securities Regulation

CN35341 . DOC GALLAGHER. CALLAHAN & GARTRELL. P.C.

wrw.geglaw.com



Re: Financial Resources Mortgage,Inc._.__ .

State of New Hampshire

Department of State
Bureau of Securities Regulation

Mark Connolly -107 North Main Street, State House Rm. 204
Director Concord, NH 03301-4989
Telephone: (603)271-1463

Fax: (603)271-7933

10/29/2009

Denis Maloney

Gallagher, Callahan & Gartrell

PO Box 1415

Concord, NH 03302-1415 -

Dear Mr. Maloney;

Reference is made to your letter dated 10/20/2009 copied to Mr. Glennon. Your letter was in response to
that of Ms. Jurta from Banking. Under the authority in RSA 421-B, describe the fractional interests
mortgages offered for sale on the web site of the above named business and submit copies to the Bureau
of the web site offering said interests. I look forward to your response within 20 days from the date of this
letter.

L -

If you have any questions, please call.
Sincerely,

Jeffrey Spill

Deputy Director

cc:file

www.sos.state.nh.us/securities
TDD Access Relay NH 1-800-7352964




DENIS J. MALONEY

214 North Main Street
P.O. Box 1415
Concord, NH 03302-1415

Ph: (603) 228-1181
Fax: (603) 226-3334
maioney@geglaw.com

October 30, 2009

HAND DELIVERED

Jeffrey Spill, Esquire
Deputy Director
Bureau of Securities Regulation

Department of State 00T 3 ¢ 2000
State of New Hampshire - I
State House, Room 204 EW AL

N .
O SFEHnze

Concord, NH 03301-4989
Re:  Financial Resources Mortgage, Inc.
Dear Mr. Spill:

This is written on behalf of Financial Resources Mortgage, Inc., a New
Hampshire corporation (“Company”) and the holder of a ‘mortgage banker’ license
issued by the New Hampshire Banking Department (“Department”). This matter arose
pursuant to the Department’s letter dated October 13, 2009 to the Company particularly
referencing an internet-based advertisement addressing mortgage funding opportunities.
Following initial discussion, you have asked for a copy of such a recent Company
advertisement for your review; a copy of the ‘advertisement’ materials is attached hereto.
together with a copy of the Department’s letter and the Company’s response thereto.
Also enclosed for your ease of reference 1s a copy of RSA 397-A, a recently amended
statute entitled “Licensing of Non-Depository First Mortgage Bankers and Brokers™ (the
“Licensing Act”) reference in the Department’s letter.

in the subject advertisements, the Company is generally soliciting third party
funding of proposed mortgage loans. For example, on page 1 of the attached, the
Company is offering third parties the opportunity to invest a minimum amount of
$100,000 (the ‘minimum participation’) in a loan to be funded secured by land and three
commercial buildings. At the closing, if any, the (a) mortgage loan documents would be
executed in the name of the actual third party lenders and these third party lenders
would contemporaneously fund the subject loan; or alternatively, (b) the loan would be
funded by a contemporaneous advance of loan funds and an assignment of the loan to
the person advancing the funds (see definition of “table funding” taken from the
Licensing Act, below).

GALLAGHER. CALLAHAN & GARTRELL. P.C.

www.geglaw.com



Jetfrey Spill, Esquire, Deputy Director
Bureau of Securities Regulation
October 30, 2009

Page 2

The Company therefore offers proposed loans for “funding” by third party lenders
at the closing table (i.e., table funding). Similarly to the many mortgage bankers who
‘regularly’ fund loans through and in the name of correspondent banks/lenders, the
Company works to fund loans on behalf of proposed borrowers though third parties. As
stated, the loans are funded and originated in the name of the actual lender, or
altematively, funded contemporaneously by the lender with an assignment of the loan
documents to the lender, as distinguished from the case where the funds are loaned by the
‘lender/investor’ directly to the Company which then originates the loan in the
Company’s name.

The following material terms are defined in the Licensing Act:

(1) “Lender” means any person that provides the initial funding for a mortgage
and includes any legal successor to the rights of the lender. For the purpose
of a table-funded transaction, the lender is the person who actually
provides the funds for the transaction.

(2) “Licensee” means a person, whether mortgage banker, mortgage broker, or
mortgage originator, duly licensed by the commissioner pursuant to the
provision of this chapter.

(3) “Mortgage banker” means a person not exempt under RSA 397-A:4 who for
compensation or gain, or in the expectation of compensation or gain, either
directly or indirectly:

(a) Makes or originates mortgage loans as payee on the note evidencing
the loan;

(b) Advances, or offers to advance, or makes 2 commitment to advance
the banker's own funds for mortgage loans, or closes mortgage loans
with the banker's own funds; and

(c) Otherwise engages in the business of funding mortgage loans.

(4) “Mortgage broker” means a person not exempt under RSA 397-A:4 who for
compensation or gain, or in the expectation of compensation or gain, either
directly or indirectly:

(a) Acts as an intermediary, finder, or agent of a lender or borrower
for the purpose of negotiating, arranging, finding, or procuring
mortgage loans, or commitments for mortgage loans;




Jeffrey Spill, Esquire, Deputy Director
Bureau of Securities Regulation
October 30, 2009

Page 3

(b) Offers to serve as agent for any person in an attempt to obtain a
mortgage loan; and

(c) Offers to serve as agent for any person who has money to lend for
a mortgage loan.

(5) “Mortgage lender” means a mortgage banker.

(6) “Table funding” means a settlement at which a loan is funded by 2
contemporaneous advance of loan funds and an assignment of a loan to the
person advancing the funds. A table-funded transaction is not a secondary
market transaction.

In our view, the Company is acting in the capacity of a Mortgage Broker in the
advertisements, seeking sources of funding on behalf of the borrowers. The Company is
seeking lenders to fund mortgage loans to be originated in the name of the lender, or
assigned to the lender contemporaneously with such funding. Analyzed under RSA 421-
B. the New Hampshire Uniform Securities Act, in distinction, through and pursuant to the
advertisements the Company is: (1) not issuing a note in its name, likely a security, to
raise funds to originate a loan, and (2) not offering to sell a participating interest in an
existing funded loan, also likely a security, but only a loan to be prospectively funded.

As such, the Company has not engaged in the offer and sale of a security under the
Uniform Securities Act.

Please call me with any questions or comments with respect to the foregoing. For
the benefit of our records, kindly acknowledge receipt of this letter and its enclosure by
signing and dating or date-stamping the enclosed receipt acknowledgement copy of this
letter and retumn it to me in the enclosed self-addressed envelope.

Very truly vours,

D \\CLW\

Denis J. Maloney 7N
DIJM:baf w
Enclosures

cc: Scott Farah
Mary L. Jurta. Director
Consumer Credit
New Hampshire Banking Department

h:dibvdocs 40\ 00024 trico4 538.doc
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LAW QFFICE OF GOULD AND BURIKKE
15 NORTHVIEW DRIVE

P.O.BOX 666
MEREDITH, NEW HAMPSHIRE (3233
TEL 6(3-279-6502 FAX 603-279-1062
Michael B. Gould. Esquire Michael Burke, Esquire
admitted to New Hampshire and Massachasetts Admitted in New Hampshireand Mnme'
megouldlaw@earthiink.net mmuriceln-wz@eart}ﬂmh_nct \%
. 5 P
June 2, 2006 S . £F 0%
7 L ~
//. N % v
/ s/
Mr. Jeffrey Spill, Esquire £ y g ¥/
Deputy Director / T W]
. - ! A A
Bureau of Securities Regulations / \a?“- {55‘ N //
~ : o ey, J
Deparument of State ( R o~/
Stats of New Hampshire ,( A et & };"
Ehouse 3 % S 4
Statshouse Room 204 N & S
Concord, NH 03301-4989 Y
" £
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\\\
Re:  Financial Resources and Assisiance of the Lakes Region, Inc. — Stone Lawguit \
Pttt
Estare of Gudrun Hanington ‘ e N
el \
e ‘ \

=

] ( & ,.L#"E‘f" 9y \
g T e \
Dear Attorney Spilt: &J ?t\,\ £ {: k
Y e’ ‘(,
I am writing to you &t the #£quest of Scott Farah, President of Financial Resources anc {
Assistance of the LakegRegion, Inc. g
e ;
It is my underst {i{ng from Mr. Farah that the Burean of Security Regulations has made inguiry /
/

as to the settiengent of the lawsuit by Howard and Ronnie Stone versus Financial Resources, Inc.,
Scott Farah, Robert Farah and the Center Harbor Chrisuan Church in Belknap County Superior
Court, Doclet No. 05-C-0071. I am counsel for both Scott Farah individually and Pmamcm»»-ﬂ"
Resources! sometimes known as Financial Resources, Inc. The Stones’ lawsuit has be néu‘nvc
and the settlement is subject o a confidentiality agre ement. Withour violaring that agreement, [
can tell you thar essentially the lawsuit was a business dispute between Financial Resources and
the Stonss. The terms of the seftlement agreement have been agreed upon and the Settiement
Agreement has been exe cuted by all the defendant partes and has been forwarded by Plaintiffs’

LIS

counse! o the Plaintiffs in South parohna waL-th‘S?Gj%ﬁ“:r-&-n@nu—BQMa_OLthuSﬁ cmum
Agreement has not b e comp eted, :

arinl kac

smpared 10 the Plaintiffs. 1 wonld expsct That LD.’S poriion of the e*nmrl,.-L
will be completed wimm the nsxt wesk. Docke: Mancmgs and Discharges of Attachrent snouid
be accompiished shorily thereafier

tis my undsrstancling that vou have alse inguirsd as to the settisment of the Gudrun Han

erINgIon Vi
% : 3 T X =ty M 5 %d : ) 4
‘matier”. Briefly, Gudrun Haningion was 2 personal friend and fellow conoresant of Scott Fareh |, /
~— i/
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in the Center Harbor Christian Church, of which Robert Farah, Scott Farah’s father, was the
pastor, Gudrun Hamngton at some poini sold some real estate and invested a portion oi the
preeeeds with Scott in kus company, Financial Resources under a participation agreement. She
also opensd small accounts m the name of her three daugers to take advantage of the RS gift
provisions and ap account in the name of Robert Farah £b/o her children in the sanie amount as
the other accounts for her children. (§10,000 in sach account) After the death of Gudrun
Hannington in 2004, Attorney Thormas Bickford, who represented her esiate, made demand upon
Financial Resources for the payment of the funds held by the company along with all interest

el U

eamed to be payable to the Estats of Gudrun Hanington. The Estate was paid on the same day

oo, ~ . . . . . A s
} that the demand was made for the full amount of all principal plus acorued interest to that day.  “ i At
¢ * B
‘:'b.—— it /’;‘(
There was no “settlement” with the Estate as there was never a dispute between Fuancial “

Resources and Gudrun Hamngton and the Estate of Gudrun Haningion. Ne legal proceeding of
any kind was ever brought against Financial Resources, only the demand for the payment of the
funds placed m’t‘manmal Resources that was honored upon its receipt. The matter was
concluded inJune of 2004.%

M /
[ hope this letter is hI assistance to you,

. S wE L RS
Sincerely yours, \ N AT Y i
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~ - v :f < v
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P.0. BOX 666
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TEL 603-279-6502 FAX 603-275-1062
Michael E. Gould, Esquire Michael Burk’_g_g,nrc )
Admitted m New Hampshire and Massachusefts Admitted in New Hampshire'dnd Maiie-_
megouldiawi@earthlink.net mburkelaw@eartalinkne: \.{‘
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, %
June 2, 2006 Py . AR
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o Soil Eass / £ X/
M. Jeffrey Spill, Esquire £ 7 & ¥ ; |
. o S~ x> F i
Deputy Director ! / \:gx 3 / !
Bursau of Securities Regulat‘ionf / A R
) - £ ke P
Department of State i 3 ~
State of New Hampshire i {\ ~ S/
Statehouse Room 204 N\ e <
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Re: Financial Resources and Assistance of the Lakes Region, Inc. — Stone Lawguit Y
SRS .
Estaie of Gudrun Haningion NS e L x
_,,_.o—-"’“"—'-’ “x‘
st R Tl '«
Ede 3, A )y
' ckpanrt 5 g’ }
iya © : A 5
Dear Attorney Spill: d.wj P‘%;’ ::5};1_5 (e S 4
[ am writng to you at the #€quest omah President of Financial Resources and "
Assistance of the Lakgs‘?\egion, Inc.
It is my understapfing from Mr. Farah that the Bureau of Security Regulations has made inquiry ~ / ,
¥

as to the settlengent of the lawsuit by Howard and Ronme Stone versus Financial Resources, Inc., /

Scott Farah, Robeﬁ Farah and the Center Harbor Christian Church in Belknap County Superior  /

Court, Doclet No. 05-C-0071. T zm counsel for both Scott Farah individually and Finanvia.;w—w/

Resour cvs'_:/someumcs known as Financial Resources, Inc. The Stones’ lawsuit has been Settled J T

and the settlement is subject to a confdenuality agreement. Without violating that agreement, I . :

can tell you thar essennally the lawsuit was a business dispute betwzen Financial Resources and

the Stones. The terms of th° seiflement agreement have been agrsed upon and the Setilement

Agreement has been executed by all the defendant parties and has been forwarded by Plaintiffs”

counse] to the Plaintiffs in South Carolina I&s«u}mmimwr@»@n\«.;amon Setlement _

- Des sthsis-dus-triasnesaidadie L TN
&

b k]

Agresment has not been complated, besthe-Des=
malsrial has-bven :ﬂ,-uw o the Plair wu:z= I would expect that this portion of the Settlernen: 3
will be completed within the next week. Docket Maridngs and Discharges of Attachment should l
be accompiished shortly thereafier. /

It 1s my understanding that vou have also inguirad as to the settizment of the Gudrin Hanmingion y
“maner”. Brefly, Gudrun Hamingion was a pv sonal fmend and fellow congragant of Scott Farah /
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in the Center Harbor Christian Church, of which Robsrt Farah, Scott Farah’
pastor. Gudrun Hanington at some point sold som

~

5 father, was the
a ro

al estate and invested a portion of the
proceeds with Scott n his company, Financial Resources under a participation agreement. She
also opened small accounts in the name of her three daughters to take advantage of the IRS gifi
provisions and an account in the name of Robert Farak f'b/o her children in the same amount as
the other accounts for her children. ($10,000 in each accountl) After the death of Gudrun
Hannmgron 1n 2004, Attorney Thomas Biclkford, who represented her estats, made demand upox
_Financial Resources for the payment of the funds held by the company along with all intersst
E eamed to be payabls to the Estate of Gudruc Hamngton. The Estate was paid on the same day
A

P - . . . . B J@HJ b
that the demand was made for the full amount of all prncipal plus accrued interest to that day. T o aL
VA : o . ) . o “F
i There was no “settlement™ with the Estate as there was never a dispute between Financial -
Resources end Gudrun Hanington and the Estate of Gudrun Hanington. No legal procesding of
f any kind was ever brought against Financial Resources, only the demand for the payment of the
b funds placed witl] Finaneial Resources thar was honored upon its receipt. The matier was
¢ concluded irJune of 2004,
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Trudy Renfors

From: Denis Maloney

Sent: Friday, June 02, 2006 11:30 AM
To: ‘megouldiaw@earihlink.net’
Subject: Financial Resources/Scott Farah
fviichael,

Thank you for speaking with me this morning regarding the above lisiad parties and a continuing inquiry from the NH Bureau of
Securities Regulaiion.

| nave reviewed vaur letier of May 31" to me that addresses the Howard and Ronnie Stone matter; in our conversation we also
discussed Ms. Gudrun Hanington's retationship with Financial Resources and Scott Farah and his father, Robert Farah.

As an initial comment, please address your ietter directly 1o the attornay involved with the Bureau, as follows:

Jeffrey Spill, Esquire

Deputy Direcior

Bureau of Securities Regulation
Department of State

The State of New Hampshire

Stete House Room 204

Concord, New Hampshire 033014988

Simply put, in his Ietier to me, Atiorney Spill asked for a copy of any “setiiement documents filled out to concludz the Stone's lzgal
claims, and thet of Gudrun Hanington.” Your letier to me states that the Stonefs] matter has been settled and the seitlemant is
subject to a confidentiality agreement — in today's conversation | iearned that ihe matter has not been finally settied, but that terms
of & ‘ifabllity contingency fund’ my terms] have not bean finalized. That said, | think we nesd ic best inform the Bureat of the
status of the matter and the remaining contingency to the fullest exient you are able consistent with your confidentialiy
obligations. Further, as my comments on your letter to me indicate [see below], the Bureau is not looking for an advocacy
discussion in this regard but just the factual present reality between the pariies. As mentioned today, it would also be appreciated
if you could also address the settlement/conclusion of the Gudrun Hanningion reiationship with the Faran parties to the best of
your knowiedge.

My further comments are contained on attached document — let me know it problem opening.

Thank you Michael — will speak on Monday morning
Denis I. Maloney :
email: malonevi@gcgiaw.com

phone: 603.228.1181 (ext. 2209)

toll free: 800.528.1181

facsimile: 603.224.7588

A /fwww, gcolaw.com

Gallagber, Callahan & Gartrell, P.C.
A muludisciplinary law firm
214 N, Main Stre=t, P.O. Box 141
Concord. New Hampshire 03302-1415

Avgusia Boston Concord

narged apove. Tha contents of this elecoonic messags are or may be protecied by the attorneyv-client priviiegs, work praduct doctrine. joim def
wade sscret protections, andier other applicable protections from disclosurs. Ifthe reader of this message is not the intended recipient. vou ars

Pars
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any use, dissemination, diswibution or reproduction of this communication is swictly prohibited. If yvou have received this communication in en

immediatety notify Denis I. Maloney by calling 1.800.528.1181 (extension 229), or by email to malonevi@ecolaw.com.
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Trudy Renfors

From:

Sent:

To:

Cec:

Subject:
Attachmenis:

Dear Attorney Maloney:

Susan Andersen [susana.mburkesiaw@sarthiink.nat]
Friday, June 02, 2008 4:36 PM

Denis Maloney

megouldlaw@sarthiink.net

Financial Resources/Scott farah

L 7ra2js060206.doc

At the request of Mr, Gould, attached is & proposed letier to Jeffrey Spill for your review and comment. I will be
ths office all day on Monday, June 5.

Sue Andersen, Secretary

Law QOifice of Gould and Burke, PLLC -

P.0. Box 666

15 Northview Drive
Meredith, NH 03253
803-279-8502
603-276-1062 (fax

|
|
|
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LAW OFFICE OF GOULD AND BURKE

1S NORTHEVIEW DRIVE
P.O0.BOX 666
MEREDITH, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03233
TEL 633-279-6502 FAX 603-279-1062

Michael E. Gould, Esquire Michael Burke, Esquire
Adminted in New Hampshire and Massachasetts Admitted in New Hampshire and Maine
megouldiaw@earthiink.net mburkelaw(@earthlink.ne:

June 2, 2006

Mr. jeffrey Spill, Esquire
Deputy Director

Bureau of Securities Regulations
Department of State

State of New Hampshire
Statehouse Room 204

Concord, NH 03301-4989

Re:  Financial Resources and Assistance of the Lakes Region, Inc. —~ Stone Lawsuit
Estate of Gudrun Haningion '

Dear Attorney Spill:

1 am writing to you at the request of Scott Farah, President of Financial Resources and
Assistance of the Lakes Region, Inc.

It is my understanding from Mr. Farah that the Burean of Security Regulations has made inguiry
as to the settlement of the lawsuit by Howard and Ronnie Stone versus Financial Resources, Inc.,
Scott Farah, Robert Farah and the Center Harbor Christian Church in Belknap Counry Superior
Court, Docket No. 05-C-0071. I am counsel for bath Scott Farah individualiy and Financial
Resources, sometimes known as Financia! Resources, Inc. The Stones” lawsuit has been settled
and the settlement is subject to a confidentiality agreement. Without violating that agreement, |
can tell you that essentially the lawsuit was a business dispute berween Financial Resources and
the Stones. The terms of the settlement agreement have been agresd upon and the Settlement

A greement has been executed by all the defendant parfies and has been forwarded by Plamntiffs’
counsel to the Plaintiffs in South Carolina for their signamre. One portion of the Settiement
Agreement has not been completed, but the Defendanrs have done their due diligence and the
marterial has been supplied to the Plaintiffs. I would expect thar this poriion of the Settlement
will be completed within the next week. Docker Markings and Discharges of Attachment should

be accompilished shortly thereafrer,

It 15 my understanding that vou have also inquired as 1o the setilement of the Gudrun Haningron
“matter”. Boefly, Gudrun Hanington was 2 persona! friend and fellow congregant of Scott Farah

LAr=2is063206.doc
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in the Center Harbor Christian Church, of which Robert Farah, Scott Farah’s father, was the
pastor. Gudrun Hanington at some point sold some real estate and invested a portion of the
proceeds with Scott in his company, Financial Resources under a participation agreement. She
also opened small accounts in the name of her three danghters to take advantage of the IRS gifs
provisions and an account in the name of Robert Farah f/b/o her children in the same amount as
the other accounts for her children. (310,000 in each account) After the death of Gudrun
Heannington in 2004, Attorney Thomas Bickford, who represented her estate, made demand upon
Financial Resources for the payment of the funds held by the company along with all interest
earned to be payable to the Estate of Gudrun Hanington. The Estate was paid on the same day
that the demand was made for the full amount of all principal plus accrued interest to that day.

There was no “settlement” with the Estate as there was never a dispuie between Financial
Resources and Gudrun Hanington and the Estate of Gudrun Hanington. No legal proceeding of
any kind was ever brought against Financial Resources, only the demand for the payment of the
funds placed with Financial Resources that was honored upon its receipt. The matter was
concluded in June of 2004.

I hope this letter is of assistance to you.

Sincerely vours,

LAW OFFICE OF GOULD AND BURKE, PLLC

Michael E. Gould

1441



Trudy Renfors

From: Denis Malonesy

Sent: Monday, June 05, 2006 2:15 PM
To: 'susana.mburkesiaw@earthlink.net'
Cc: fnagouidiaw ®=zrihlink.nst
Subject: RE: Financiali Resources/Scott faran
Atiachments: ABA-raﬁ.,DDF

Michael,

Attached are my markzsd thoughts on latest draft of letter — in particular, received partial file fram Scoft Farah that
has Tuly 23, 2004 daied letter from Aty Bickford to vou and to Scott [HAND DELIVERED AT BELKINAP COUNTY
SUPERIOR COURT . ..] so perhaps it's a July vs June 2004 payment date.

I will call you shortly to discuss - ?DO YOU HAVE COPIES OF ANY OF THE ACCOUNT OPENING AGREEMENT[S]
OR PARTICIPATION AGREEMENTS INVOLVING THE HANINGTONS?? Or the Stones??

Denis ]. Maloney

email: malonev@gralaw.com
phorne: 603.228.1181 (ext. 229)
toll frea: 800.528.1181
facsimile: 603.224.7588
htto://www.gcalaw.com

Gallaghe:, Callahan & Gartrell, P.C.

B multidisciplinary law firm
214N Main Street, P.O. Box 1415
Concord, New Hampshire 03302-1415

Auguste Boston Concord

NOTICE REGARDING PRIVILEGED COMMUNICATION - The information contained in this electzonic message is
intended only for the addressee named above. The contents of this electronic message ars or may be protected
by the attorney-client privilege, work product docirine, joint defense privileges, trade secret proiections, and/oz
other applicable protections irom disclosure. If the readsr of this message is not the intended racipient, you are
hereby notified that any use, dissemination, distribution or reproduction of this communication is strictly
prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please immediztely notify Denis |. Maloney by
calling 1.800.528B.1181 (extension 228), or by amail to malonev@c'-cﬂaw.com.

-—--0Original Messags--—

From: Susan Andersen [mailtosusana.mburkaslaw@earthlink. net)
Senv; Friday, june 02, 20086 4:35 PM

To: Denis Maloney

Ce: megouldiaw@earthiink.ne

Subject: Financia 7Resouces,’8ﬂott faran

gl

ezt Atiorney Maloneay:

U

At the request of Mz, Gould, attachad is 2 proposed letier to Jefirey Spill for your revisw and comment. I will be in
ine cffice all day on Monday, June .
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Sue Andersen, Secretary

Law Office of Gould and Burke, PLLC
P.O.Box 6866

18 Northview Drive

Meredith, NH 03233

B03-278-6502

BC3-278-1062 (fax)
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LAW OFFICE OF GOULD AND BURKE
15 NORTHVIEW DRIVE
P.C. BOX 666
MEREDITH, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03253
TEL 603-279-6502 FAX 603-279-1062
Michael E, Gould, Esquire Michaet m\\
Admitted in New Hampshirc and Massechusetts Admitted in New %bx: a.nd Mainz \\
megouldiaw@earchinknet /mbﬁ:\cﬂn’@emmnkn:’( v A\\
e 5. 200 / _ (NS U \
June 5, 2006 e m |
[ e 9
( - L Y /./
Mr, Jeffrey Spill, Esquirc s p y ~ y
Deputy Director » P Ve

Burcau of Sccurities Regulation /
Department of State e
State of New Hampshire

statchouse Room 204
Concord, NH 03301-4989

Ae: Financial Resources and Assistance of the Lakes Region, Inc. - Stone Lawsuir
Estate of Gudrun Hanington

Decar Artorney Spill:

I am writing to you at the rcquest of Scott Farah, President of Financial Resources and Assistance
of the Lakes Region, Inc.

It is my understanding from Mr. Farah that the Bureau of Sccurity Regulations has made inquiry as
to the settlement of the tawsuit by Howard and Ronnie Stonc versus Financial Resources, Inc.,
Scott Farah, Robert Farah and the Center Harbor Christian Church in Belknap County Superior
Court, Docket No. 05-C-0071. T am counsel for both Scott Farah individually and Financial
Resources and Assistance of the Lakes Region, Inc., somctimes known as Financial Resources, Inc.
The Stones’ lawsuit has been scttied and the settlement is subject to 2 confidentiality agresment.
Without viciating thar agrcement, I can tell you that essentially the lawsuit was a business dispure
between Financia! Resources and the Stones. The terms of the settlement agreement have been
agreed upon and the Settlement Agreement has been executed by all the defendant partics and has
been forwarded by Plaintifls’ counse! to the Plaintiffs in South Carolina for their signature. [ would
expect that Docket Markings and Discharges of Attachment will be accomplished within the next
14 days.

It is my undcrstanding that you have also inquired as to the sertiement of the Gudrun Hanington
“matter”. Briefly, Gudrun Hanington was a personat friend and fellow congregant of Scott Farah in
the Center Harbor Christian Church, of which Robert Farah, Scott Farah's father, was the pastor.
Gudrun Hanington 2t somc point soid some reaf estate and invested 2 portion of the proceeds with
Scott in his company, Financial Resources. Shc aiso opened small 2ccounts in the name of her
three daughrers to tzke advantage of the TRS gift provisions 2nd an account in the name of Robert

L2 2ja0060206 doc
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Farah f/bjo her children in the same amount as the other accounts for her children. (510,000 in
each account) After the death of Gudrun Hannington in 2004, Attorney Thomas Bickford, who
tepresented her estate, made demand upon Financial Resources for the pavment of the funds held
by the company along with all interest carned to be payable to the Estate of Gudrun Hanington.
The Estate was paid on the same day that the demand was made for the full amount of all principal
plus accrued interest to that day.

There was no "settlement” with the Estate as there was never z dispute between Financial
Resources and Gudrun Hanington and the Estate of Gudrun Haningron. No legal procesding of
any kind was ever brought against Financial Resources, only the demand for the payment of the
funds placed with Finandal Resources that was honored upon its reccipt. Thc matter was
concluded in july of 2004,

I hope this letter is of assistance 1o you.

Sincerely yours,

LAW OFFICE OF GOULD AND BURKE, PLL
< . /4%’_0’?/
////Mﬂ/ '/

Michac! E. Gould



Trudy Renfors

From: Denis Maloney

Sent: Monday, June 03, 2008 5.23 PM
To: Jeff Spil!’

Subject: Scott Farah; Financial Resources

S':,
With respect to your letier of May 22, 2006 to my attention regarding the abave parties, | have just faxed a copy of my initial
response lettar io you, together with copy of letter from putside counse! to Farah/FRA with respect to the Stone(s) and Hannington
matters. | did not fax the remaining production deliveries, including copies of saveral *Account’ agresments and related
correspondence. The original of my ietier and ALL aitached materials will be hand deliversd to vour atiention on Tuesday
morning, 6/06. As noted in my letier to you, we continue to work to assembie copies of all relevant ‘pay-off' correspondence, as
well 2s information with respect to FRA's participation agreements.

Plezse contact me with any questions or comments, thank you

Denis J. Majoney

email: malonsv@ecelaw.com
phone: 603.228.1181 (ext. 229)
toll free: 800.528.1181
facsimije: 603.224.7588
htin://www.zealaw.com

Gallagher, Callahan & Gartrell, P.C.
A muluidisciplinary law firm

214 N. Main Street, P.O. Box 1415
Concord, New Hampshire 03302-1415

Augusta Boston Concord

NOTICE REGARDING PRIVILEGED COMMUNICATION - The information contained in this electronic message is inended only for tf
mamed above. The contems of this electronic megsage are or may be protected by the attorey-client privilege, work product docmine, joint defe
wade secret protections, and/or other applicable prowections from disclosure. Ifthe reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are |
any use, disserninartion, distribution or reproducton of this communication is smictly prohibited. If vou have received this communication in er
immediately notify Denis 1. Meloney by calling 1.800.528.1181 (extension 229), or by email 1o malonev(@ecglaw.con.
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Danis Maloneay

From: Susan LeDuc

Seni: Wednasday, December 20, 2008 2:22 PM
To: Denis Maioney; Christophar Galiaghsr
Cc: Susan Holiingar; W. John Funk

Subject: REZ: Sirategy/SNL Hildreth thoughts

‘confusion” surrounding how

[}

Ra: Financial Resources & Assistance: | think th
Andrsa Shaw and Donna Soucy have lsf the file languish since the 2004 exam
pfavs o our advaniags. The Ociober 4, 2006 et er from Kim Griffin states that,
The observations in the report ars significant enough that we ars ra erring the
file to our atftorney for evaluaiion and possible enfarcemant action.” | am not surs
when Jim Sheapard will pick up this file. Basad on his handiing of the Traditional
Morigage — Buccieri compiaint, and [—R&A s filing of a |etier with Kim Griffin
saying that they havz hirad us {o help, | would expect that Shepard would call us

when/if ha gets to the file, and/or we are forcad o file nofice of a satliement with

the Securities Div.

Until wa have both a Data Ssourity Risk Assessmeant and a compliance program
documsant compieted (which [ am working on now), | don't think we want 1o bring

FR&A ip P=ter's atteniion.

3

As far as other Banking Depariment issues:

Traditional Morigage — Buccieri: | will b2 omoinnng a proposad 3587-A

aspanse fo the complaint after | Tinish FR

» Traditional Morigage — conversion io mongage banker. Oncs the Buccieri
complaint is satiled, Traditicnal wants {o change status which will invoive a
new application.

¢ Five M's Autogroup, Inc. — a ratail sales finance appiication is pending at

DOB.

DFC of Maine, inc. — wailing for Peter's responss fo characterization of

exam o"saster and sloppy business practices as “boiched dissolution”
beiwsen business partners. f OK’s, then ws will prepare a Licenss
Ter ination fliing.

From: Denis Maloney

Sant: Wednaesday, Decembear 20, 2006 1:35 PM
T Christopher Gallaghar

Cc: Susan LzDuz; Susan Hollingar

Subject: FW.: Strategy/SNL Hildreth thoughts

Hildrath -

1y | am not carizin if the NHBD would s‘ta { 2 procaeding 10 yank license, providing vs with
opportunity to be heard, 25 with Securities folks; OR just yank it and we have 1o alk them

back into 1ssuing naw licanss, Much di ierent situations — would jike o be informad prior

to vank, nams of this cilent is Financial Resources of tnz Lakss Region, inc. and for right

o]
)
(V8]



now, | balisve things are quiat so probably best io lat this ons ie guisl. SNL — do you

agree??

Other matters — presuma you hava looped in with ol on peading businesss to com

bsiore Pater, | am perticularly awars of;

1) Bow Mills acguisition — we will be filing for mergar approval, n==sd to form

‘ohaniom bank’ to gst there, good work should be no poiitical issuss

2) Ths Nashua Bank — this is nsw bank io be formead, John Siabile Sr involved
38%s. We ars prasently raising organizational expanse capital for organizing
entity [BTBZ Corporation] and will bs filing for new trust compeny charter in sarly
2007 togsther with application for faderal deposit insurance. Organizars could bs
mors bank savvy 25 is Joe Reiliv/iucy Gobin of Cenfrix isam but thess ars our

b

guysS so. ..
Thanics for afforis

D=nis

From: Susan LaDuc
Sent: Weadnasday, December 20, 2006 1:20 PM
Ta: Christopher Gallagher; Dodd Griffith; Susan Hollinger; Denis Maioney

Subject: RE: Sirategy/SNL

SBH's calendar indicataes that she will not be in ths office until fomorrow,

Fram: Christopher Gallagher

Sent: Wadnasday, December 20, 2006 12:45 PM

Ta: Dodd Griffith; Susan Heliinger; Denis Malonzay; Susan LeDuc
Subject: RE: Strategy/SNL

Thanks for "replying io all", Dedd, it now lobks iike we will have to wait until tomorrow .but keep in
mind that | mest with the Commissionar tomorrow AM so i thars are any issues for his attention |
need o know taday, what they are. We may aiso ba able 10 mast effeciively without you sinca
this is the moripage praciicz group but if you can join us as the lzader of the broader group, that

would haipiul,

From: Dodd Griffith

Sent: Wednzasday, Dacember 2C, 2006 12:08 PM

To: Christonher Galiagher; Susan Holiinger; Denis Maloney
Ca Danald Piundstair

Subject: RE: Stateqgy/SNL

I3 71n2 with me. | have a client meeilng at 2, which could taks awniie, but it

shouid ba over by then.

I
—
-
3
Jus

—

)]
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LAW OFFICE OF GOULD AND BURKE
15 NORTHVIEW DRIVE
P.O. BOX 666
MEREDITH, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03253
TEL 603-279-6502 FAX 603-279-1062

Michaef Burke, Esquire
Admitrted in New Hampshire and Maine
mburkefaw@earthiink net

Michaet E. Gould, Esquirz
Admitted in New Hampshire and Massachuserts
megnh@carthiink net

March 18, 2005

Peter Doyle, Esquire

Shaines & McEachern

25 Maplewood Avenue

PO Box 360

Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03802

Re: Scott Farah
Ronnie Stone and Howard Stone v. Scott Farah, et al
Belknap County Superior Court Docker #05-C-071

Dear Peter:

Thank you for taking the time to speak with me today concerning Scott Farah and the
litigation in which he is presently embroiled. As I indicated on the telephone Mr, Farah is the
owner of Financial Resources and Assistance of the Lakes Region, Inc. (FRA). FRA is a mortgage
brokerage that procures commercial and residential mortgages and loans. Frequently, the principal
Scott Farah has transactions involving private investors who are looking to obtain a return on their
money in excess of the prevailing stock market or banking rates. It was in this context that Mr.
Farah accepted funds from Howard Stone and Ronmnie Stone in the late spring of 2003, Howard is
the father of Ronnie, but Ronnie is overseeing the investments of Howard. It is my understanding
that Mr. Farah accepted $125,000.00 from Howard Stone and had agreed to pay a rate of return of
13%. The interest was to be and has been paid monthly to Howard Stone. Mr. Farah also
accepted $109,635.14 from Ronnie Stone and had agreed to pay a rate of return of 12%. Ronnie
Stone’s money was to be invested in a vehicle that qualified as an IRA. The interest was retained
and reinvested on Ronnie Stone’s money. There are no written agreements for either of these
investments. I understand that the time period for the investment was open-ended, but Mr. Farah
made it clear to Ronnie Stone that the money would not be immediately returned on demand due

to the nature of the investment.

Some time in October 2004 Ronnie Stone began asking Mr. Farah for the return of both
his and his father's money. Mr. Farah explained at the time that the money would take some time
to free up. Ronnie Stone renewed his requested during the months of December 2004 and January
and February 2005. On occasion Mr. Farah explained that he was working on freeing up the
money, but thar it would take some time. Finally, on February 25, 2005 Ronnie Stone made a
renewed request for the funds. Mr. Farah explained that the money would be available by the end
of the following week. Mr. Farzh, mindful that Ronnie Stone was unemployed at this point,
offered to give him a $10,000.00, interest free Ioan in the event Ronnie Stone had pressing



financial issues, Stone did not accept or reject the offer immediately, but indicated he would call
Farah back. When Ronnie Stone called Scott Farah back he indicated that he had just received his
tax refund and the following week would be acceptable.

On March 3, 2005 Mr. Farah, FRA, Mr. Farah's father Pastor Robert Farah and the Farahs’
church the Center Harbor Christian Church were served with the enclosed pleadings. The case
brought by Christopher H.M. Carter, Esquire on behalf of Ronnie Stone and Howard Stone alleges
that the defendants used 2 deceitful scheme to induce the plaintiffs and other members of the
church “to entrust hundreds of thousands of dollars of their retirement funds and savings’ with
FRA. The plaintiffs allege that the defendants obtained these funds through misrepresentation,
never invested the funds in legitimate investments and refused to return the funds upon demand.
As the pleadings indicate Mr. Carter alleges 2 number of transaction that do not bear on the
Stones.  These transactions were raised peripherally in prior litigation involving FRA and a
defendant represented by Attorney Carter. Those allegations were not relevant in the prior
litigation and bear on the Stones’ transaction only to the extent that Mr. Carter is alleging 2
pattern of deceitful and illegal conduct. Mr. Carter has alleged on behalf of the Stones breach of
contract against Scott Farah and FRI (FRA) (Count I), fraud and misrepresentation against Scott
Farah and FRI (FRA) (Count II), conspiracy to defraud against all defendants (Count HI), violation of
the consumer protection statute RSA 338-A against Scott Farah and FRI (FRA) (Count IV),
conspiracy to violate of the consumer protection statute RSA 338-A against all defendants (Count
V); conversion against Scott Farah and FRI (FRA) (Count VI) and unjust enrichment against Scott

Farah and FRI (FRA) {(Count VI).

The plaintiffs also sought to attach by ex parte petition the land and bank accounts of all
defendant. FRA’s business account was trustee process. At the time of service it contained
$140,000.00; $130,000.00 was to be used to pay Romnic Stone that day. Mr. Carter took the
position with the bank’s attorney Ed Philpot that his attachment of the bank account should
operate to prevent the defendant FRA from having access to any funds deposited after the time of
service as well. This required us to file an ex parte motion with the Court to free up funds
deposited subsequent to the time of service. I believe Mr. Farah’s personal joint bank account with
his wife was frozen. The plaintiffs have sought attachments of $500,000.00 against each defendant.

My partner Michael Gould has filed 2 Motion in Limine with the Court in an effort to limit
the extent of the attachment on FRA’s bank account. Our intent is to pay Ronnie Stone from the
business account the sum of $129,000.00, which we agree he is owed. We have conveyed this
offer to Mr. Carter along with our offer to return the amount of $125,000.00 owed to Howard
Stone from non-attached sources. Mr. Carter’s response was condition his acceptance of these
funds on the provision to request all documentary evidence relevant to the Stones’ claims. As a
result we will be paying Howard Stone’s money into the Court on March 18, 2005 and Ronnie
Stone’s money into the Court on the day of the hearing on the ex parte attachment, provided the

Court releases those funds.

Robert Farah is represented by David Bownes, Esquire of Laconia, New Hampshire. I
believe David is in the process of preparing pleadings to object to the attachment of Robert Farah'’s
property. The Church’s interest may be represented by David for purposes of the attachment
hearing, but the intent is to get the Church its own counsel in this matter.

In viewing the pleading one would think this is a complicated matter, but at its heart it is a
somewhat embellished collection action. The willingness of FRA to pay the plaintiffs the sums they
are due under confract should resolve the contract issues. But for Mr. Carter’s fees, I cannot see at



this point what damages the plaintiffs have suffered as they have been given or will be given all
amounts due them under the contract. As for the consumer protection action, once the funds are
returned to the plaintiffs, it would appear that the plaintiffs’ statutory damages will be fimited in
the absence of actual damages.

After you have had an opportunity to review the enclosed material, please feel free to call
me or my partmer Michael Gould if you have any questions, Mr. Farah can be reached at 279-
1133, Mr. Farah would like to set up a time to meet with you at your office at your earliest

convenience.

Sincerely,

LAW OFFICE OF GOULD AND BURKE

Michzel Burke
MB/tbm

Enclosure

cc: S. Farah

11fra0317.doc



LAW OFFICE OF GOULD AND BURKE
15 NORTHVIEW DRIVE

P.O. BOX 666
MEREDITH, NEW HAMPSHIRE (03253
TEL 603-279-6502 FAX 603-279-1062
Michael E. Gould, Esquise Michaze! Burke, Esquire
Admirted in New Hampshire and Massachusetrs Admitted in New Hampshire and Maine
megouldiaw@earthlink net mburkelaw@carthtink net

May 1, 2006

Christopher HM. Carter, Esq.
Hinckley Allen Snyder, LLP
43 North Main Street
Concord, NH 03301

Re: Ronnie P. Stone and Howard Stone v. Financial Resources, Inc., Scott Farah,
Center Harpor Christian Church, and Robert Farah

Via Fax to: 545-6105 and 224-8350

Dear Attorney Carter:

Pursuant to our discussion this afternoon relative to your clients’ settlement offer, please accept
this facsimile as confirmation of the following:

1. Financial Resources will pay Ronnie Stone, individually and as Power of
Attorney for Howard Stone, a lump sum payment of $550,000.00. This
payment can be paid either directly to your law firm as attorneys for both
the Plaintiffs, or separated into Howard Stone’s portion with Ronnie Stone’s
portion being paid to his new self-directed IRA. This alternative should
help all parties by limiting any potential IRS penalties or assessments.
Before Financial Resources pays any amount to Ronnie Stone on Howard
Stone’s behalf, Ronnie Stone will have to produce the Power of Attorney.

(3]

Financial Resources will post a bond to satisfy the amount of Mr. Stone’s IRS
penalty. If Mr. Stone elects to amend his personal tax return, the bond will
be available to pay his penalty. Alternatively, if Mr. Stone elects to have his
money paid directly to his self-funded IRA, and the IRS does not challenge
this transaction, then after the applicable statute of limitation has run, the
parties will share the bond equally, each party receiving 50% of the
proceeds.

LifraZec050106.doc
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Financial Resources will disclose the source of the funds after the parties
have agreed to all settlement terms. However, as [ stated to you on the
telephone, [ am confident that there will not be an issue regarding the
source of the funds.

Neither Party Docker Markings will be filed with respect to the Stones,
Financial Resources and Scott Farah. The Plaintiffs will voluntarily non-suit
their claims against, Robert Farah and CHCC, with prejudice.

All parties, including CHCC and Robert Farah, will enter into a standard
Confidentiality Agreement prohibiting disclosure of the settlement terms to
any third party, including federal, state or local agencies or authorities.

This Confidentiality provision will also run to Jackie Stone and will require
her signature. In the event the parties are asked about the settlement, they
will answer only, “The matter has been settled” or, “The matter has been
resolved to the satisfaction of the parties.”

Scott Farah will forward a letter of apology, which shall be subject to the
terms of the Confidentiality Agreement.

Please review the enclosed and if you have any questions, call me. I am hopeful we can resolve this
matter as soon as possible as trial is looming.

Sincerely yours,

LAW OFFICE OF GOULD AND BURKE, PLLC

Michaet E. Gefild

MEGIsa
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HinckieyillenSnyderu.
ATTORKREYD AT LAW! : R

43 North Main Jive?t

Concord, N 053071.4631

TEL: £03.233 4334

FAN: §00.204.5360

" ' wwi RARIAW NAMM
Christopher H.M. Carter
coerten(@baslew. o0m

Dm'ct Tzl (613) 5436104
Dircet Fae (603} 5456105

May 1, 2006 o

VIA FACSIMILE

Michacl E. Gould, Esguire

Law Office of Gould and Burke

15 Notthvicw Dnve, P.O. Box 466
Mercdith, NH 03252

Re: Ronnie P.Stone. ef 1l v. Finaneigl Resourees. Ine. eral,
Docket No. 03-C-0071

Deer Attornsy Gould:

Thank you for your May 1, 2006 letier regarding setilernent of this case. I havereviewed your
counter-proposnl with my clients, and ¢an prowca the following responss, 40 the-numbered
paragraphs In your letter

1. This oppears acceptable, SUbject 1o reaching completé agreement on
addressingz the IRS penalty (discussed below).

(%]

"'his appears acceptable ps well, As I understand your letter, Ron Stone
atill hes the option of reporting the mismanagement of his 401K 1o the
iRS, allowing the IRS to disclose the amount of the penalty, and allowing
Detondants to pay the full amount of the penalty. Please confirm this
point. 1 will discuss your alfernanive proposal with Mr. Stonz.

3. Please ndvise the infended soures of funds to coverthe celtlement
poyment, 50 that we can confirm that Plaintffs have nosobjection 1w the
3 A

4, Accepinble,

L7y
'Y
[t

)

cintiffe will not accept & confidentiality agreement, sud therefore must
rc;u your counter-oXfer es staied, As you and I have discussed. the
abil:?n 10 uncover (e wuth ebout their treatment by the Farahs, CHCC,

4 FRI has besn, for Plaindds, the most important goal of this ligedon. -

£77,225.0000 FaX: 817.345.9020
L: 4012742000 PAX: 40).277.8600

P4 RII0 KNEPT, BALION, MA D2ZI0E-17TE TEL

Tizet Centar, Providence, Bl 6260¢ 339
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Having said this, however, T would zppear (nat Defendarts wonld he fur
lezs coneemned aboul disclosure uf the vefloient (eis (which standing
alone wouwld not speak direetly 10 1ssurs ol fadlt/goilf), than ahout the
contnued disclosure of far more damapiny Lcls:during discavery,
depositions, and mwal.

O

Plaintiffy would require & writen epology from Scott Farah and Ruber(
Farah, Ip zddition, whils Plaintiffe-will not secepr a tonfidentiality
agreement, they would consider cervain reasonabledimivations on the
disclosure andsor duplication of the apalogy letter, such, ag limitations
against disclosing the apology or i1s conteants 1o federal, state, or lonal
agencies or authorides. ‘

I remain hopeful thal b ternaining issues can be resolved. I will attanpt o reeclt you this

gvening ar vour cifice, or on your cell phonz. '

Sineerzly,

(4 (<

\.—-——*——~

Chrsronl:e'r H.M. Caner
CrD/IC/ 52

3-8 Ronnis and Jeckie Stone
gniel M, Deschenes, Esq,

#580142

wx TOTAL PAGE. 8BS nn
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HmckﬂeyAHenwademp e
F\‘IUHNHQ.: LAW o .
&1 Hnrin Bhain Straet o
Congord, NH 03301-4344 EEE
TEL: 603,245,494
FAX: BUY.2Y4 R3GC
. . . wwy, igaisw.com )
Chrisiopher H.M. Carter .
cearteT(@hatizw.com e
Direct Dicl: (60%) 54546104 L
Disel Fax: «(603) 545 6105 I

May 2, 2008

VIA FACSIMILE '

Michael E. Gould, Esquire

Law Office of Gould and Burke
15 Northviaw Drive, P.O, Box 666
Meredith, NH 03233

Re:  Ronnie P. Stope, et al, v. Finanelal Resonrees, [ne., ef al.
Docket No. 05-C-0071 \

Dreyr Anomey Gowld:

This lefter sball confm that the pariicy have reached en agreement (v setle this cose. A drafi
Scltlenent Agreement is attached. The central terms of the agreeruent re-as follows:

1. Detondants shull pay Plaintiffs $600,000 in full szHisfaction of all of
PMainitiffs’ cluims. Plaintiffs will advisc how the $660,000 shall be paid,
1.¢., Whether it shall be paid-as & lump suiu lu Ron'Spone, individually and
as Power of Antorney for Howard Stone, ur whether'a portion of the funds
ghall be directed to an approved self-directed IR A fimd for Ron Stone, ns
such wther investment directed by Plaintills.

Financial Resources will post a bond sufJicient to cover any penalty fronn :
the TRS relating to the mismanagement of Ron Stone’s AU1K. The amannt i
of the pu.t:z'm;’.l penalty will be deteriined by an objective third party ‘
acceplable to Plaintiffs and Defendants. After Fingncial Resourees posty
the hond, Ron Stons may clect to: (a) eport the marer to-the IRS; o {b)
wait {or The statutory period to run-nn uny enforcement action by the IRS
relating 1o Mr, Stone’s 401K, If, at the ond of the sm‘uter} pe nod, uu
demand hias been made ngainst the hond, an amount equel 1o the fase
amount of the bond will be dividad equally bﬂrw‘een Fingneial Resourves
and Mr. Stone. For example, 1f thebond was for $70,000, Finencial
Resources and Ron Sone would each recoive $35,000.

[

23 Liers Glroot, Busluit, MA R/1NN-ITTE TEL §17.345,0000 TAX D17.344.3020
1308 Fler! lentar, Providensg, RIST200-2383 TEL: 401274 J0UD FAN: 441.277.0300 [
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Fage 2

a3

You have advised that $523,000:0f the setlement funds- will derive from

tha sale of resl esiate owned by Susan Faialy, Defendants will provide

sonfirmation of this, a5 well a8 ovidence vfithe soureeof $75.000 balunce

of th settlement payment, o .

4 Noitner Parly Docket Markings will be filed. . .

‘I'he enclosed draft Sentlement Agrecment contains'a sonfidentiality
provision hinding on all partics as well uy JackieStone. As indicaizd, the .
Setdement Agreement absolutcly bars any party from dizclosing the ferms o
of the scttlanent, including the amonnt of the gettlement payment, ot from ,'
rnaking any public statement that would otherwise ruttht on the -
scttlemen! (crms or amouxt. ‘

(941

8. Plainsifls will not requiro an apology from any Defendant,

Tn veliance on this agreement, ¥ have cancelled the depasitions of Robert Fargh and Scott Farah,
scheduled for May 3 and May 4. Please conaot mc immedialely if there is any disagreement as
to the (erms of the scitlement vutlined above, In addition, please forward any commenis or
révirions on the draft Scttlement Agreement,

Finally, Ron Stone will arriye in New Hampshire this aflemoon, and wili be ablc to pruvide all
infurmsidon needed from Pldnmﬁs 10 consummate the xe(tlemernt. I'm surt you a.nd your clients
shure our desire to conclude Lhis marter promptly. Likewise, the Supetior Court will uppreciate
kuowing that thig matter Liux been resolved, Accordingly, I would hope that all comuponents of
the settlement could be coneluded within the next 2-3 days. Please let me know il you anticipate
any difficulty in cxchanging executed ssttiement docngents, and the seftlement [unds, within
{nig dmeframe.

Thank you for your cooperdtion.

gosmes

C hnsropn H.M. Carter
CHMC/sc

Sineerely,

ce.  Ronnie and Jackic Stone
Daniel M. Deschenry, Esg.
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SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE :
This Setflement Agreement end Releass (“Agreemant”) is entered imo this day of

Muy 7008, by and detwern Plaintiffs Ronnie Stone and Howard Rtoucf(g‘PlﬁntiﬁS”) and Jackie
Slome, on one hand, and Defendants Scott Farah, Financial Resourcss, Inc., d/o/z Finaneial
Resourees and Assistance of the Lakes Region (“FRI™), Roberl Fxrah, and Center Harbor
Christian Church (“CIICC™) (*Defendanis™), on the other, Tlaintifly, Jécide ‘Smne, and
Delendants are referred 1o collectively herein as *the Parties”.

WHEREAS, Plaintiffs filed = civil action ageinst Defendants captioned Ronnie P. Stone

and Howard W. Stonc v, Robert Farah. Scott Farah, Finapgial R :solmvc:s.; Inc, and Center Harbor

Christian Church, Docket No. 03-C-0071, in the Belknap County Superior Cquft in the State of
New Hampshire (ths “Litization™); aml

WHEREAS, Defendohis have appeured in the Litrgation and denied liabiliqq and

WHEREAS, the Pactics recognizs the burden, expenscand delay uf Litigatton and the
uncertain outcoms of proccedings, «nd have concluded that it is infcheir mums.l best interests o
resolve the Litigation on the terniy set forth below; and.

NOwW, TI—IEREI"URE; in consideration of thepromiscs and co\fr:wié setforth in this
Agrerment and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is
herely #eknowledaed, the Partics hecclo e.\:pressly.o.grco as follows:

1. Sertiemept Pavment. Defendants agree to pay Plaitiffs the sum of Six Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($600,000,00) (“Sertlement Amouni”), The Sztflement Amount is due and
payabiz at the time of the excoution nf (his Agreement by‘ the Parties.

2. No Admissign Qf Liabilitv. It is expressly inderstood undagraed by the Portics

that this Agreainent is entersd mto solely fur the purpose of terminating the Lirigstion az

™)
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betwesi (he Parties, Neither this Agreement nor any other communmicstion conceming this
Agreenen! shall be desmed, construed n¢ (reutad in ‘any respect as an advmission of liability or &

breach of duty on the part of any Pasty. “

3. Dismissall Of The Ljtivation With Prejudice. The Pariies.agree thst, upon
paymeniin full of the Settloment Anunt, counsel for the Parties:shallicxecute and cause to be
filed with the Court 2 Stipulation of Dizmissal With Prejudice and Witkwut Costs as 10 Plaititfs’ v

claims agninst Defendants in the Litipation.

4. Release Of Defendants. Plaintiffs, in their own nght snd on behalf of their past, :.f
present aud future agents, ‘Successars aud assigms, do hereby expressly, votumarily and
mmediately release and discharge Defendants and theirpast, present 2dd fun;u‘e agents, hers, o
cxceuinrs, yuccessors, and;assigns fioin #ny and ell acGons, causes.of auu‘"un; suits, debis,
charges, complaints, claimg, lighiliBes, cuniracts, oblteations, damégcs a,nﬁ-e;{penses of any kind
or nature whetsoever that Plainttffs ruay have had or claimed to huve had, or D;DW have ¢r clams o .
to have, or hersafer may h"ave ar Assart to have,; which arosc oul of or are in any manner
whatsoever, directly ov indircctly, counected with or related to the Tirigation, the subject matter - » '
thereof, v uny claims or canses of action that were or which could have.:ﬁé.en asserted in the
Litigatio.
5 Confidentialjtv. The Parties, and Jackie Stone, xcpr':senf Is.iw_d agree that they will
Keep Lhe terms of this Agrecment and (he Settlement Amount completely ;onﬁéientiol, and will
not hereafler make any public statements tending to quantify the s'.'i‘/.c; of the Settlement Amount,
or otherwise disclosing any information concerning this Agreemont or the Setdement Amemt, 3 :
excopt: (a) ns muy bz ordered by 2 cowl uf appropriate jurisdiction or required by law by a duly

constituted govenmmental body or tax authority; (b) a5 neogssary for the purpose of the

v
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enfoteement of this Agrcement; of () #s necessary for the purpose b:”-.;_r“rzﬁ ging for the ) ’
investnent of any portion of the Settloment Amount, preparing tax refi sr8flecting the receipt
of the Setilement Atnount, or addressing auy penalty or violationiassessed by (he IRS as 2 result W
of TRT's hendling of Rounic Stone’s 401K fimd, as alleged in the Litigation. Relure any
disclosure i made un ‘er.‘the pircumstances viled ztove, the Parry: di.sclbgingr'§1zfurmaﬂon she.ll"
provide notice to the other Portics before the disclosure is made.

The Purtizs acknowledge that it is absolutely essaatial that~ the terms df this Agreement,
including the Senlement Amount, rernain strictly confifentisl. Any Esrcy mmay seek a court order
sompelling cnmypliance with the terms of this confidentality pmvisic}n'.-whioﬁmay alsu result in
the court imposiny equitaklble relief, additional monatary damages C}nd/of $ancf£om, wncluding vut : '
not limited 6 the payinent of costs and atiorneys® {vey associated with any coun acling to ;
enforce the cantfidentiality violation. The Parties Turther acknowledge that, inthe event of 2 , 4
violahon of this wim fidentizlity provision, damages may be difficult to quantify. Arcordingly,
the Parties agree that uponthe adjudicotion by 2 courl of compe’cenrjuri:s“dictic‘mﬂml e breach of | LA |
this confidentiality provision has occurred, the breaching Party will have gn obligation tu pay

damnages in the liquilated armount of $10.000 for =ach vivlation.

6. Indenwjﬁcéﬂozr as to IHS Pepalty. Within five (5) days 6F the exccution of this
Apgreement, FRI will deposit into 2 designated cscrow aciuunt opened, in.-tfxc name of the Partes’ 0o
counsel an amount sufficient 10 cover any penalty from the IRS relﬁing o ERI's handiing of
Raoonie Stone's 401K, as allegrd in the Litigation (the “Bscrowed A_‘;noun’f’-’). “Theamount of (he
potential penalty to be used {0 Getermning the Escrowed Amount will be dét&mtzcd by an
nhjactive thind party acceptahle (o Plaintiffs and Defondants, After FRIT establishes the Escrowed NS

Amount, Ronnie Stone mey slect {u repon the matter to the IRS. Howeverpif, at the end of the

LI
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statutory period for enforcement action by the RS, o penalty has been esscssed which requirss
payment of the Bscrawed Amount, the Bserowed Ammmt, together with intérest carued on the
same, will be divided cynally between FRI and Ronnie Stone.

7. Volunfacv and Informed Consent. Fuch Party to thisiAgresment wartants thet ;

10 promuse or inducemert to enter into this Agreemont has been fosre;d;' cxeept as hecin set
forth. Each Party also avknowledges that it has acted*with the adﬁce o:f guch counsel 1
executing this Agreement. Each Party hereto end 2ach person executin'gihis%&g‘ccfixmi
acknowledgss that the lerms and conditions of tms Apréement have beeny completely read, and L - . 1‘
that the terms and condirivns are fully understood and voluntarily hcoc;:;téd. , | ' l P
s Anplicalils Law. This Agrcement shall-he deemed to be ma&fc and enered inte : VI
i the State of Now [{ampshira, and shall in all respectshs interpreted, enforced 2nd guverned

under ite laws. ‘I'he language of alf parrs of this Apreanaul shall in all cages be construed as 2

wilole, according 1o it3 fairmeaning, and not smctly for ur against any of the Partiex. ;; o

9. Successors ‘And Assigns. This Agresment shall be bindiilg- upen and shall inure

{u the benefit of the I‘a.zticx;herem and their respective heirs, successors ar1d assigns.
10, Severabilitv. In the event any part of this Ayreementis docmcé’unmforceable '
fr any reason, the tomainity provisions of this A greeiusmt shall remain in‘full foree wnd effect, |
11.  Exceytion. This Agreement may becxecuied by each Pam on separate
counterpants, each of which:when 30 executed and dolivered shall be deemed an origingd and all
of which taken tgcther constinute but one and the same instrument. .Counterparts nuy be )
wrauxmined by the Perhics to their counsel via telocopier, if convenient to ao;so. and such :

counlerparts end copies therenf shull be deemed originals, [or all purposes. o

S
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12.  Entirc Agreemen( Thiz Agresment contuns ﬂa; cnti;‘rﬁégréement of tas Partics
wilh respect 10 the subject matier hereuf and supersedes &ll prinr #ud contemporaneous oral and
wriitlen agreements, discussions aud statements. No supplement, nodification, waiver or
ferminetion of this f\g:oémmt shall he binding unless execuicd in w:iﬁulg bv the Party or Partics
10 be hound thereby. Nowaiver of any vl the pmVisioﬁs of this Agreenent shell be deemed to

constituiz o waiver of any other provisivns hereof, whether or notisindilur, nor shall such waiver

constinule 2 continuing waver,

AGREFD AND ACCEPIED:

ROUNNIE STONE

_ . Witnesy: . Vared:
HOWARD STONF

_— Witnexx: . Dared

Ey Ronnic Stone, acling pursuant to
Power ot Attorney [rom Howard Stone

JACKIE STONC

Witness: ) Daied:
FINANCIAU RESOURCES, INC,
—_— Wimess: Dzied:
By:
Its:

W
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CENTER HARBOR CHRISTIAN CHURCH o SO

3 _ Witness__ . Daiud: b

By: :

Its: -
Loy

SCUITTARAN

- Wimess: __Dated:

ROBERY! FARAH p | | C b

Witness: .o Dated:

]
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SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE

This Sertlement Agreement and Release (“Agrecment"”) is entered into this ____ day of
May 2006, by and berween Plaintiffs Ronnie Stone and Howard Stone (“Plaintiffs"”) and Jackic
Stone. on one hand, and Defendanis Scott Farah. Financial Resources and Assistance of the
Lakes Region, Inc. d/b/a Financial Resources, Inc., (“FRI"”). Robert Farah, and Center Harbor
Christian Church (“CHCC") (*Defendants”), on the other. Plaintiffs, Jackie Stone, and

Defendants are referred to collectively herein as “the Parties™.

WHEREAS, Plaintiffs filed a civil action against Defendants capticned Konnie P. Stone
and Howard W. Stone v. Robert Farah, Scott Farah, Financial Resources, Inc. and Center
Harbor Chrisrian Church, Docket No. 05-C-0071, in the Belknap County Superior Court in the

State of New Hampshire (the “Litigation”); and
WHEREAS, Defendants have appearcd in the Litigation and denied liability; and

WHEREAS, the Parties recognize the burden, expense and delay of litigation and the
uncertain outcorne of proceedings, and have concluded that it is in their mutual best interests to

resolve the Litigation on the terms set forth below; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and covenants sct forth in this
Agreement and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is

hereby acknowledged, the Panies hereto expressly agree as follows:

1. Settlement Pavment. Defendants Financial Resources and Assistance of the

Lakes Region. Inc. d/b/a Financial Resources, Inc. and Scott Farah individually agree to pay

Plaintiffs the sum of Six Hundred Thousand Dollars ($600,000.00) (“Settlement Amount™). The

05/10:2006



Sertlerment Amount is due and payable at the time of the exccution of this Agrecrnent by the

Parties.

®

2. No Admission Of Liability. It is expressly understood and agreed by the Parties

that this Agreement is entered into solely for the purpose of terminating the Litigation as
between the Parties. Neither this Agreement nor any other communication concerning this

Agreement shall be deemed, construed or treated in any respect as an admission of liability ora

preach of duty on the part of any Party.

3. Dismissal Of The Litigation With Prejudice. The Parties agree that, upon

payment in full of the Sertlement Amount, counsel for the Parties shall execute and cause to be

l

filed with the Court a Stipulation of Dismissal With Prejudice and Without Costs as to Plaintiffs

claims against Defendants in the Litigation.

4. Release Of Defendants. Plaintiffs, in their own right and on behalf of their past,

present and future agents, successors and assigns, do hereby expressly, voluntarily and
immediately release and dischargs Defendants and their past, present and future agents, heirs.
executors, successors, and assigns from any and all actions, causes of action, suits, debts,
charges, complaints, claims, liabilities, contracts, obligations, damages and expcnses of any kind
or nature whatsoever that Plaintiffs may have had or claimed to have had., or now have or claims
10 have, or hereafter may have or assert to have, which arose out of or are in any manner

whatsoever, directly or indirectly, connected with or related to the Litigation, the subjcct matter

thereof, or any claims or causss of action that were or which could have been asserted in the
thereof vcl f action that hich could have b ted in th

Litigation.

3. Confidentialitv. The Parties, and Jackie Stone, represent and agree that they will

<

keep the terms of this Agreement and the Settlement Amount completely confidential. and will

o

05/10/20058



not hereafter make any pubiic statements tending to quantifly the sizc of the Scttlement Amount,
or ctherwise disclosing any information concerning this Agreement, except: (a) as may be
ordered by a court of appropriate jurisdiction or required by law by a duly constituted
governmental body or tax authority; (b) as necessary for the purpose of the enforcement of this
Agreement; or (c) as necessary for the purpose of arranging for the investment of any portion of
the Settlement Amount, preparing tax returns reflecting the receipt of the Settlement Amount, or
addressing any penalty or violation assessed by the IRS as a result of FRI's handiing of Ronnie
Stone's 401K fund, as alleged in the Litigation. Beforc any disclosure 1s made under the
circumstances cited above, the Party disclosing information shall provide nolice to the other
Parties before the disclosure is made. The Parties also agree not to seek out the media to
comment on the case and, in the event that they are contacted by the media, will state that the

matter is settled and that they are satisfied with the settlement and refer all further inquiries to

their counsel.

The Parties acknowledge that it is absolutely essential that the terms of this Agrecment,
including the Settlement Amount, remain strictly confidential. Any Party may seek a court order
compelling compliance with the terms of this confidentiality provision, which may aiso result in
the court imposing equitable relief, additional monetary damages and/or sanctions, including but
not fimited to the payment of costs and attorneys' fees associated with any court action to
enforce the confidentiality violation. The Parties further acknowledge that, in the event of a
violation of this confidentiality provision, damages may be dilficult to quantify. Accordingly,
the Parties agree that upon the adjudication by a court of competent jurisdiction that a breach of
this confidentiality provision has occurred, the breaching Party will have an obligation to pay

damages in the liquidated amount of $10.000 for each violation.

C53/10/2008
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6. Indemnification as to Possible ITRS Penalty. FRI will deposit into a designated

escrow account opened in the name of the Partics’ counsel an amount sufficient to cover any
perialty from the IRS relating 10 FRI's possible mishandling of Ronnie Stone’s 401K, as alleged
in the Litigation. The amount of the escrow account (the “Escrowed Amount”) shall be agreed
upon by the parties. If at the end of the statutory period for enforcement action by the IRS, no
penalty has been assessed which requires payment of the Escrowed Amount, the Escrowed
Amount, together with interest earned on the same, will be divided equally between Susan G.

Farah, Trustee of the Northview Drive Trust of 1995, as Lender, and Ronnie Stone.

7. Voluntarv and Informed Consent. Each Party to this Agreement warrants that

no promise or inducement to enter into this Agreement has been offered, except as herein set
forth. Each Party also acknowledges that it has acted with the advice of such counsel in
executing this Agreement. Each Party hereto and each person executing this Agreement
acknowledges that the terms and conditions of this Agreement have been completely read, and

that the terms and conditions are fully understood and voluntarily accepted.

8. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be deemed to be made and entered into

in the State of New Hampshire, and shall in all respects be interpreted, enforced and governed
under its laws. The language of all parts of this Agreement shall in all cases be construed as a

whole, according 10 its fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any of the Parties.

9. Successors And Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure

to the benefit of the Parties hereto and their respective heirs, successors and assigns.

10. Severabilitv. In the event any part of this Agreement is deemed uncnforceable

Tor any reason, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

05/10/2008 4



11. Execution. This Agreement may be executed by cach Party on scparate
counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be deemed an original and al/
of which taken together constitute but one and the same instrument. Counterparts may be

wransmitted by the Parties 1o their counsal via telecopier, if convenient to do so, and such

counterparts and copies thereof shall be deemed originals, for all purposes.

12. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Parties

with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior and conternporancous oral and
writlen agreements, discussions and statements. No supplement, modification, waiver or
termination of this Agreement shall be binding unless exccuted in writing by the Party or Parties
to be bound thereby. No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed to
constitute a waiver of any other provisions hereof, whether or not similar, nor shall such waiver

constitute & continuing waiver.
AGREED AND ACCEPTED:

RONNIE STONE

Witness: Dated:

Ronnie Stone

JACKIE STONE

Witness: Dated:




HOWARD STONE

Witness: Dated:

By Ronnie Stone, acting pursuant to
Power of Attorney from Howard Stone

FINANCIAL RESOURCES, INC.

A/K/A FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND ASSISTANCE OF THE LAKES REGION, INC.

M Witness: ’////@Z//j{//ﬂ;/ Dated: &/ /?/6),(

By: Scott Farah
Its: President
Duly Authorized to Act on Behalf of the Corporation

SCOTT FARAH

%/ stitness:///%//w‘?/‘/;/@ﬁ«?ﬁated: d‘/‘/a/a <
/ /

Scott Farah, Individually

ROBERT FARAH

o , s R ,7—/( -
(C—toes S et Witness;
Robert Farah, Individually

05/10/2006 6



CENTER HARBOR CHRISTIAN CHURCH

T 7
s T 77 Mg %_y -
Sl bt U T S et ~Witness: Vi Dated: & /s2/7 &

[ —‘_‘—*7—_
By: Robert Farah /

Its: Pastor and President
Duly Authorized to act on behalf of the Center Harbor Christian Church

s —
i / 7 P Yyl .
[/}/[7 o/ v - /4*4 f// . Witness: .z //f///oéf/—/éi_’ ./éffu"g’/éated: o/ /d/ SO

B¢: John Dernakowski
Its: Deacon
Duly Authorized to act on behalf of the Center Harbor Christian Church

1L . /
jfé% /‘g//{/gc (LJ% Witness:
By: Sieve Woodman
Its: Elder
Duly Authorized to act on behalf of the Center Harbor Christian Church

05/10/2008 g
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*1 COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, EX REL. STATE CORPORATION COb

TRUST ALLIANCE, THE REAL ESTATE lKVPbTMLD” COME
SAVINGS, LLC, ANLD JOERG ME YEF

Division of Securities and Re

Case No. SEC-200¢

November 2%, 200

SETTLEMENT ORDER
Based on an investigation conductec !
Franchising ("Dl’lSTOF )y, 1t is alle
L of the Virginia Securities ARct ("R
ginia, by acting as an agent of the tere
sion; (2) Trust Alliance, The Real LLC
Trust Alliance Savings, LLC ("Trust T 504
employing an unreglsLered agent, Jo n } TR REI, Trus

e -
Joerg Meyer violated § 13.1-507 of t ;o ol r selling
were not registered under the Act or 1 -

The State Corporati Commission", 1
the Act to revoke egistration, b-
temporary Or perman py § 13.1-3518
1nvest1gau‘on, v he Akct to umpo
and by § 12.1-15 ¢f the Cod £ Wirginia te settl
tion.

The Defendants neither admit nor deny thess allsgations
sion's jurisdiction and authority to enter this Se

As a proposal to settle all matters arisi r
ants have made an offer ¢ settlement to the Co
will abide by and comply with the Zoliowing te

(1) The Defendants agree TC
investors who may stilil be
final payment to be made no

(2) The Deifiendants agres tna
Trust or hire a professional

& 2010 Tnomsor. Keuters. Nc Tlezaim tc Orig. UZ Gov. Woruss
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controls are put in place and ars registered with th
or claim an exemption from reglistration, i1l

{(3) On or before January 1, 2010, t
Division certifying the status of pay
(1) and the status of any reorganization
item (2).

The Division has recommended that the Commissi
of the Defendants.

*2 The Commission, having considered t“e
of the Defendants, and the recommendation
the Defendants' offer should be accepzed.

Accordingly, IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT:

{1) The offer of the D
and it is hereby, acc

ferdants i settliement of
.
te

e
et

(2) The Defendants fully comply with the aforesaid
settlement; and

{3) The Commission shall retain jurisdicticn in t©
cluding the institution of a show cause procesdin

A
deems appropriate, on account of the Defendants
)

and undertakings of the settlement.

Mark C. Christie, Chairman
Theodore V. Morrason, Jr.

Judith Wiliilams Jagdmann

Commissioners, State Corporation Commissiocon

The Deiendants, Trust

Alliance Savings, LLC,
Corporation Cocmmission
neither admiz nor deny
and Retail Franchising

© 2010 Thomson Reuzrers. No Claim To
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agent or
der.

November 10, 20C¢
Trust Alliance, The Real Estate Investment Company, LLC

Trust Alliance Savings, LLC

s,

#5k
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COMMTIESTON

*1 COMMONWEZRLTH

TRUST ALLIANCE, THE REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT COMPANY, LLC, TRUST
SAVINGS, LLC, AND JOERG MEYER, DEFENDANTS
Division of Securities and Retail Francnising
Case No. SEC-200€-00087
May 5, 2010
FINAL ORDEEK

On November 2
Settlement Or
and Retail Fr
fulfilled the

Accordingly, IT IS ORDERED THAT:
{1} This case is dismissed.

(2) All undertakings and provisions of a continuing nature set forth in the
Order remain in full force and effect.

(3) Entry of this Final
the existence or nature

Mark C. Christie

Judith Williams Jagdmann

Commissioners, State Corporation Commission

END OF DOCUMENT
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